
 
 
 

 
Satish Mistry 

Director of Corporate Services 
 

 

 

Guildford Borough Council 

Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey  GU2 4BB 

www.guildford.gov.uk 

Contact: Sophie Butcher  

Committee Services 2 September 2016 

01483 444056  

 
Dear Councillor 
 
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the BOROUGH, ECONOMY AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE EXECUTIVE ADVISORY BOARD to be held in Council Chamber, 
Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey GU2 4BB on MONDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 
2016 at 7.00 pm. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Satish Mistry 
Director of Corporate Services 
 

MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE ADVISORY BOARD 
 

Chairman: Councillor Jenny Wicks 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Liz Hogger 

 
Councillor Philip Brooker 
Councillor Nils Christiansen 
Councillor Andrew Gomm 
Councillor Angela Goodwin 
Councillor Nigel Kearse 
 

Councillor Julia McShane 
Councillor Bob McShee 
Councillor Mike Parsons 
Councillor Mike Piper 
Councillor Matthew Sarti 
 

Authorised Substitute Members: 
 
Councillor Adrian Chandler 
Councillor Colin Cross 
Councillor David Goodwin 
Councillor Murray Grubb Jnr 
Councillor Gillian Harwood 
Councillor Christian Holliday 
Councillor Jennifer Jordan 
 

Councillor Dennis Paul 
Councillor Tony Phillips 
Councillor David Quelch 
Councillor Caroline Reeves 
Councillor Pauline Searle 
Councillor David Wright 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 

This meeting will be recorded for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s website. The whole of 
the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on 
the website for six months. 
 
If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have consented to being recorded. By 
entering the Council Chamber, you are also consenting to being recorded and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
If you have any queries, please contact Committee Services on 01483 444102. 
 

QUORUM: 4 
 



  
 

 

THE COUNCIL’S STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK  
 

Vision – for the borough 
 
For Guildford to be a town and rural borough that is the most desirable place to live, work 
and visit in South East England. A centre for education, healthcare, innovative cutting-
edge businesses, high quality retail and wellbeing. A county town set in a vibrant rural 
environment, which balances the needs of urban and rural communities alike. Known for 
our outstanding urban planning and design, and with infrastructure that will properly cope 
with our needs. 
 
Five fundamental themes that support the achievement of our vision: 

 

 Our Borough – ensuring that proportional and managed growth for future 
generations meets our community and economic needs  

 

 Our Economy – improving prosperity for all by enabling a dynamic, productive 
and sustainable economy that provides jobs and homes for local people  

 

 Our Infrastructure – working with partners to deliver the massive 
improvements needed in the next 20 years, including tacking congestion issues  

 
 Our Environment – improving sustainability and protecting our countryside, 

balancing this with the needs of the rural and wider economy 

 
 Our Society – believing that every person matters and concentrating on the 

needs of the less advantaged 

  
Your Council – working to ensure a sustainable financial future to deliver improved and 
innovative services 
 
Values for our residents 
 

 We will strive to be the best Council. 

 We will deliver quality and value for money services. 

 We will help the vulnerable members of our community. 

 We will be open and accountable.  

 We will deliver improvements and enable change across the borough. 
 
Mission – for the Council 
 
A forward looking, efficiently run Council, working in partnership with others and 
providing first class services that give the community value for money, now and in the 
future. 
 



 

 

A G E N D A 
ITEM 
NO. 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS  

2   LOCAL CODE OF CONDUCT AND DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS  

 In accordance with the revised local Code of Conduct, a councillor is required to 
disclose at the meeting any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) that they may 
have in respect of any matter for consideration on this agenda.  Any councillor 
with a DPI must not participate in any discussion or vote regarding that matter 
and they must withdraw from the meeting immediately before consideration of 
the matter. 
  
If that DPI has not been registered, the councillor must notify the Monitoring 
Officer of the details of the DPI within 28 days of the date of the meeting.  
 

3   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 

 To confirm the minutes of the Executive Advisory Board meeting held on 11 July 
2016. 
 

4   GUILDFORD TOWN CENTRE WI-FI (Pages 7 - 12) 

 To explore the potential options for the delivery of Wi-Fi within Guildford Town 
Centre. 
 

5   GUILDFORD PARKING STRATEGY AND ELECTRIC VEHICLES  
(Pages 13 - 46) 

  Suggested points for discussion:    
  
Parking Strategy  

1 1.    Does the EAB agree with the keys aims of the parking strategy?  

(a) To encourage alternative modes of transport 
(b) To intercept cars as early as possible on their route into town 
(c) To encourage a drive to, not through approach 
  

2.  Does the EAB agree the strategy sets out a clear path to achieving  
these aims?         

  
Electric Vehicles  

3.   Does the EAB agree we should adopt the definition of Ultra Low 
Emission Vehicles (ULEVs) rather than just electric vehicles for our 
Green Scheme? 

4.   How does the EAB consider we can stimulate take up of Electric  
      and ULEVs in Guildford?          

 

6   COUNCILLOR INVOLVEMENT IN THE PREPARATION OF THE BUDGET 
(Pages 47 - 52) 

7   EAB WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 53 - 58) 

 To consider and approve the EAB’s draft work programme.  Details of future 
Executive decisions are included.   
 



 

 

8   UPDATE/PROGRESS WITH MATTERS PREVIOUSLY CONSIDERED BY 
THE BOROUGH, ECONOMY AND INFRASTRUCTURE - EXECUTIVE 
ADVISORY BOARD (Pages 59 - 66) 

 

Please contact us to request this document in an  
alternative format 



BOROUGH, ECONOMY AND INFRASTRUCTURE EXECUTIVE ADVISORY BOARD 
 

11 JULY 2016 

 
 

 
BOROUGH, ECONOMY AND INFRASTRUCTURE EXECUTIVE 

ADVISORY BOARD 
   *Councillor Jenny Wicks (Chairman) 

  *Councillor Liz Hogger (Vice-Chairman) 
 

  Councillor Philip Brooker 
 * Councillor Nils Christiansen 
 * Councillor Andrew Gomm 
  Councillor Angela Goodwin 
  Councillor Nigel Kearse 
 

 *  Councillor Julia McShane 
 *  Councillor Bob McShee 
 *  Councillor Mike Parsons 
 *  Councillor Mike Piper 
 *  Councillor Matthew Sarti 

 
*Present. 

 

BEI20   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Phillip Brooker, Angela 
Goodwin and Nigel Kearse. 
  
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 23(j), Councillor Colin Cross attended as a 
substitute for Councillor Angela Goodwin. 
  
Councillors Geoff Davis, Caroline Reeves and James Walsh were also in attendance. 
  

BEI21   LOCAL CODE OF CONDUCT AND DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS  

No disclosures of interest were submitted. 
  

BEI22   MINUTES  
The minutes of the Board meeting held on 23 May 2016 were confirmed. 
  
The Board received an update in relation to the Guildford Design Guide.  It had been 
recommended by the Board at its previous meeting in May that the Executive should 
consider setting up a working group to oversee the emergence of the Guildford Design 
Guide.  The Board, however already had powers to establish its own working group.  Owing 
to a lack of resources currently, a working group could not be created immediately.  The 
Board would be updated on progress to date at its next meeting.   
  
The Draft Parking Strategy was also meant to have been circulated to all Board members in 
June.  The Board noted that this would now be considered at their forthcoming meeting in 
September given that it had to first be considered by the Guildford Local Committee at its 
meeting on 22 June 2016.   
  

BEI23   GUILDFORD TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION PLAN  
The Major Projects Portfolio Manager (Interim) gave a presentation on the Guildford Town 
Centre Regeneration Plan: 
  
The Board was invited to provide views/comments on the document and raised a number of 
questions, including: 
  

         Considered the differences between the Town Centre Masterplan and Town Centre 
Regeneration Plan and how it would work in principle?   

Page 1

Agenda item number: 3



BOROUGH, ECONOMY AND INFRASTRUCTURE EXECUTIVE ADVISORY BOARD 
 

11 JULY 2016 

 
 

  

         The Board noted that the Town Centre Masterplan was approved by Council in 2015 
and was a guidance document only.  The Regeneration Plan set out a vision of how 
the town would look in the future.  Capital funding would be sought from Surrey 
County Council and the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  Regeneration could be 
carried out on Guildford Borough Council owned land whilst encouraging developers 
to work in partnership.  
  

         What were the current plans in relation to Guildford Bus Station?  
  

         The Major Projects Portfolio Manager confirmed that the bus station was located in a 
key development area.  Various studies had been commissioned via SOC and ARUP 
to map current travelling patterns around the town.  An aspiration of the Council was 
to create a transport hub at Guildford Train Station. 
  

         The ward councillor for Friary and St.Nicolas welcomed the proposed regeneration 
works within Guildford town and made the following observations in relation to how 
the plans could work in the longer term: 
  

o   At Walnut Tree Close, two planning applications had recently been refused 

owing to flooding issues.  Ward councillors and planners therefore held a 
meeting to work out how to mitigate these flooding issues for the future. 

o   Mindful of the Property and Transport Group’s vociferous comments about 

the lack of provision of office parking.  Noted that Bedford Wharf was mainly 
earmarked for residential when it could be used for office parking. 

o   Woodbridge Meadows could be used for residential housing and was not at 

risk from flooding. 

o   Need smaller retail units rather than large retail units.  The Pop-Up Village 

planned for Guildford was a good step forward, but would be good to have 
something in the longer term. 

o   Offices could be built in Bedford Wharf with restaurants below rather than 

residential units, owing to the potential for noise disturbance and proximity to 
local nightclubs.   

o   Housing provision needed to be mixed with small and affordable units that are 

not reliant upon cars. 
  

         The BT telephone exchange was perceived as an eyesore and the Board was keen 
to know if plans were in place to secure its removal as well as what the Bedford 
Wharf site would be used for? 
  

         The Major Projects Portfolio Manager confirmed that there were no plans to remove 
the BT telephone exchange and plans were ongoing in relation to the development of 
the Bedford Wharf site. 
  

         Need to be careful not to overly focus upon retail provision around North Street to 
the detriment of the shops at the top of the town. 
  

         Supported the development of the river, ensuring that it remained an open and vital 
gateway to Guildford town whilst not compromising the vitality of the High Street.  
  

         Questioned the sense of having to drive around the gyratory to access the biggest 
car park in Guildford located in Bedford Road.  Further work needed to be 
undertaken on improving the throughflow of traffic.  Additional parking was also 
recommended at Portsmouth Road as well near the Royal Surrey Hospital. 

Page 2

Agenda item number: 3



BOROUGH, ECONOMY AND INFRASTRUCTURE EXECUTIVE ADVISORY BOARD 
 

11 JULY 2016 

 
 

  

         The Board agreed that the river was vital and needed to be made more accessible 
between Bedford Wharf towards Shalford.  In addition, a mix of housing, affordable 
housing and retail was required.  
  

         Questioned whether more offices could be provided on top of the railway station?   
  

         The Board noted it was generally very expensive to employ labour in Guildford and 
therefore only a limited number of offices would be provided for start-up businesses 
and some corporate companies.   
  

The Board fully supported the work plan and objectives for the regeneration of the town 
centre.  The Board noted that the regeneration plan was to be considered by the Executive 
at its meeting on 27 September 2016.  The Board recognised the short time frame left for 
members to have further significant input into the plan.  Nevertheless, the Board requested 
that they had sight of the report and any associated private papers at its next meeting on 12 
September 2016.   
  
[post-meeting note: It was agreed at the Joint Overview and Scrutiny and EAB Work 
Programme meeting that owing to the short-turn around the above topic would not be 
considered at the next meeting of the Board on 12 September 2016].   
  

BEI24   STOKE PARK MASTERPLAN  
The Parks and Landscape Manager gave a presentation on the Stoke Park Masterplan.  The 
Board received an overview of the consultation process to be undertaken with existing users 
and other stakeholders to make Stoke Park a vibrant community park and visitor 
destination.   
  
The Board was invited to provide views/comments on the document and raised a number of 
questions, including: 
  

         The Lead Councillor for Rural Economy, Countryside Parks and Leisure drew the 
Boards attention to the financial summary for Stoke Park and was interested to know 
from the Board if they could identify any short comings? 
  

         The Board acknowledged the need to steer a vision for the masterplan.  Stoke Park 
had been very successful to date and wanted to sustain it to meet future community 
needs. 
  

         The Board recognised the value of the park and did not want it to become overly 
focussed on money-making schemes. 
  

         Catering provision could be improved in the park as well as at the Spectrum. 
  

         Tennis court surface improvements needed.  Funding could be sought via schemes 
such as the London Marathon Trust.   
  

         Potential for public art installations. 
  

         The Board noted that public attendance figures for Stoke Park Gardens had 
decreased and therefore recommended if it was possible to feature plants at certain 
times of year within glasshouses. 
  

Page 3

Agenda item number: 3



BOROUGH, ECONOMY AND INFRASTRUCTURE EXECUTIVE ADVISORY BOARD 
 

11 JULY 2016 

 
 

         The Parks and Landscape Manager confirmed that the gardens had been closed for 
6 months owing to pool refurbishment works.  Wisley Gardens was also located 
close-by and the provision of glasshouses was likely to be costly.   
  

         The Board noted that it was not obvious how to get from the corner of Stoke Park 
down to the river? 
  

         The Parks and Landscape Manager confirmed that there was a well-maintained path 
to the riverside nature reserve and a walk was being put together for the Mayor in 
September 2016.   
  

         Unclear if members of the public realised that there was a public car park at 
Wildwood? 
  

         Recommended that a wooded play area with zip wires was created at the front of 
Stoke Park.   
  

The following questions were submitted to the Board for their comment: 
  

1.    What form should a stakeholder and wide public consultation take to inform a 
masterplan? 
  

         A leaflet could be dropped to each house and a temporary structure erected 
in the park for the public to post written suggestions. 

  
2.    What are the views on the current and future usage for events, activities and sports, 

i.e. what should the output of the park be? 
  

         Considered that the output of the park was about right currently.  The 
catering provision should be made more obvious and tasteful. 

  
3.    What are the views on the need for investment in the parks infrastructure and assets? 

  

         The Board noted that drainage was currently managed and under control;   

         Gardens, pathways, fences and trackways should be repaired and 
refurbished; 

         Listed structures would potentially require further investment and; 

         External suppliers consulted to provide improved catering facilities.   
  

4.    What should the scope of the masterplan cover? 
  

         The Board considered that the two halves of the park should be linked more 
cohesively via the Green Bridge and lock;   

         To assess whether all of the assets were currently located in the right place; 

         It was confirmed by the Parks and Landscape Manager that the Home Farm 
properties would be vacated to help fund the rest of the Masterplan; 

         To work closely with neighbouring residents, schools and colleges. 
  

5.    What are the views on the promotion of the park and engaging use in the site? 
  

         The Board agreed that current usage was about right for the park and 
significant promotion was not required. 

  
6.    How do we sustain the current highly successful output from the park? 

Page 4

Agenda item number: 3



BOROUGH, ECONOMY AND INFRASTRUCTURE EXECUTIVE ADVISORY BOARD 
 

11 JULY 2016 

 
 

  

         The Board agreed that by investing in people’s health and life chances visitor 
numbers would be sustained; 

         This was quantified by a reduced number of sick days for businesses and the 
significant link to the health and wellbeing agenda; 

         Wanted to strike a balance between intensifying the use of the park and the 
current use of the park; 

  
7.    What are the EAB’s perceptions about community needs for the park? 

  

         Should provide better toilets and changing facilities for runners; 

         Need to support the health and fitness for the older demographic of 
Guildford; 

         Provide improved facilities for people with disabilities and play equipment for 
children. [The Parks and Landscape Manager confirmed that there was a 
disabled toilet located next to the play area.  A lot of the play equipment was 
inclusive too]. 

  
8.    Comments on the project structure for developing the masterplan. 

  

            The Board recommended that a working group was formed to visit other  
neighbouring parks.   

  
The Board fully endorsed the formation of a project board.  The Parks and Landscape 
Manager would be invited back to the Borough, Economy and Infrastructure meeting in a 
year’s time to look at setting up a project board and how to take this forward.   
  

BEI25   EAB WORK PROGRAMME  
The Board noted that the parking strategy would be circulated to members. [post-meeting 
note: this item was to be considered by the Board at its next meeting on 12 September 
2016].  
  
The Board requested clarification as to why Sustainability Issues (including eco-living 
options and the impact of/adapting to climate change) was recommended for removal from 
the Corporate Plan? [post-meeting note: This item has been incorporated into ‘Smart Cities – 
An energy, Climate Change & Sustainability Perspective’ for consideration by the Society, 
Environment and Council Development EAB at its meeting on 20 October 2016.] 
  
 
The meeting finished at 8.50 pm 
 
 
Signed   Date  

  

Chairman 
   

 

Page 5

Agenda item number: 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Briefing Note:  

 

The Enabling Role of the Council 

 

1.  Background to Digital Wireless Strategies 
The strategy of metro wireless networks is not a new concept but has been in existence 
with the United Kingdom for a number of years with varying degrees of success. In its early 
manifestation the commercial deployment of town centre wireless networks was based on 
the delivery of public internet access via laptops with the user paying either a monthly, 
weekly or daily subscription.  

This model was very prescriptive and in most cases was relatively unsuccessful, to the 
extent that whilst access to the internet now via mobile handsets and PDA’S as well as 
laptops still remains an integral part of the justification of any business case to deploy a 
town centre network, the wireless market has increasingly moved away from a chargeable 
subscription model for internet access towards making internet access a value added free 
service with revenue being derived from sponsorship, advertising and other digital services, 
with additional charges only being levied for specific downloads such as games and music. 
Whilst noting this evolution towards free access it must be recognised that wifi in its own 
right will not support a long term investment from any private sector model. 

In addition to this significant change and as both the public and private sectors moved 
towards the adoption of an IP strategy to deliver services, the business case for such Metro 
Wireless Networks in the latter part of the last decade did increasingly embrace 
requirements from local authorities in which city wide networks became subject to public 
tenders with the local authority becoming the main tenant on such a network guaranteeing 
to the infrastructure provider a sustainable revenue stream. Whilst such an approach had 
merit and received interest this model was faced with many challenges in particular existing 
contractual relationships and contract terms. 

Most recently in the last two years the potential availability of wireless (wifi) zones in town 
centres has been utilised by the MNO’s (Mobile Network Operators) in migrating demand 
from or the IPhone from a 3G Network, which could not meet the demands of the end user 
to a wireless network when available.  

 
Whilst such an approach is still being validated what has now emerged is a growing interest 

from the Mobile Operators in delivering enhanced localised 3G coverage and future 

localised 4G coverage through the deployment of Small Cells at a street level using street 

furniture assets. This interest is due to increasing demands on the operators network 

(amount of data that we as consumers are accessing and downloading) where 3G is 

evident (five bars on your phone suggesting maximum coverage) but connectivity is very 

slow (highlighted by the revolving wheel on your screen). 

It is in this context that a succession of concession based agreements have been 
successfully implemented which has seen the provision of public wifi access backed by a 
longer term and sustainable Small Cell commercial model. 

 
 

Page 7

Agenda item number: 4



 

For the likes of a number of London Boroughs (Camden, Islington and Hammersmith and 
Fulham), Glasgow, Carlisle, Manchester, Cardiff, and Plymouth revenue was derived from 
their concession agreements, however the market has evolved to a point where guaranteed 
revenue from an upfront fee is now very unlikely and has been replaced by Councils 
seeking to ensure that the concession is cost neutral with the value being derived from 
social and economic value. It is this scenario which is more likely to apply in Guildford. 

Beyond this normal concession route of councils enabling through street furniture assets, 
what has recently emerged are other local authorities now seeking to commercially exploit 
other council owned assets such as ducting infrastructure through a concessionary model. 
A strategy successfully adopted by the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham and 
now being considered by other local authorities. 

Despite this relative success the market again is evolving respond to new requirements and 
models. However what still remains at heart of all these approaches is how public wifi can 
be delivered.   

 

2.  The Market - Commercial Models: 
 

Various commercial and funding models are being enabled or implemented by Local 

Authorities and other Partnerships, including Business Improvement Districts, to deliver Wi-

Fi within Towns and Cities as well as a more general wireless delivery capturing Business 

Parks. 

1. Local Authorities Metro Wireless Concessions 
 

Over the last four years a succession of local authorities have embraced and actively 

implemented a strategy of beneficial use of council owned assets to realise commercial, 

economic and social aspirations. 

In each instance the local authority, by adopting this cost neutral approach, has engaged 

with the market through a concessionary procurement process to ensure best drive to 

secure a concession with a private sector company, who will utilise subject to a commercial 

agreement council owned street assets to deliver a wireless network. 

What has been evident during this period is the continued interest of the market in 

progressing such opportunities but also an evolving expectation from local authorities, with a 

move away from a purely commercial opportunity, as was evident in Westminster, to a more 

balanced approach which also focuses on social and economic development issues and 

opportunities, as exemplified by Glasgow, Brighton and Hove, Carlisle, Plymouth, 

Leeds/Bradford and the London Borough of Camden. 

Such concessions remain very popular with the public sector, however this should be 

tempered by potential bidders being more selective in their key targets, and that direct 

commercial opportunities through asset rental have diminished.  

 

 

 

 

Page 8

Agenda item number: 4



2. Wi-Fi – Advertising and Sponsorship 
 

Following the recent award of concession contracts in Edinburgh and Watford a further 

model supporting the provision of a more socially orientated Wi-Fi model has now emerged. 

This model is based on the provision of free Wi-Fi but is commercially sustained by 

sponsorship and advertising through an App. 

In such cases a community focused App funded by the company concerned and sustained 

by local advertising and sponsorship provides a platform for the delivery of local community  

Although in terms of implementation this model is still in its infancy and will need to 

demonstrate its sustainability in the coming months, this is the model which will emerge in 

the first instance in both Edinburgh and Watford. 

 

3. CCTV  
 

As recently demonstrated with the announcement by Gloucester City Council to co-incide 

with the hosting of the Rugby World Cup in Gloucester of the delivery of free public space 

Wi-Fi by BT Wireless http://www.securitynewsdesk.com/gloucester-kicks-off-free-wi-fi-

service-for-rugby-world-cup/ other models are starting to emerge to realise the W-Fi 

aspirations of local authorities. 

In this instance the City Council leveraged their Wi-Fi aspirations through the procurement of 

their cctv backhaul contract and the provision of social value in the guise of public Wi-Fi. The 

outcome to this strategy as detailed in the attached link was the award of an extended cctv 

contract with in return provision by BT of free Wi-Fi within the City Centre. 

Whilst there is merit in this approach it should be noted however that this strategy is 

dependent on the scale and scope of the Council’s existing contract and the number of lines 

delivered.through such a contract. Without sufficient scale this option may not be feasible.   

 

4. BID (Business Improvement Districts) 
 

Whilst certain BID’s have adopted a strategy of seeking funding from its  members to pay for 

the capital investment required to deliver a Town Centre Public Wi-Fi provision and with it 

the inherent problems of ensuring that sufficient funding or revenue is generated to fund 

opex costs, the Lincoln BID has recently secured a commercial agreement with a third party 

where the third party has at its own risk and investment delivered a public Wi-Fi network in 

Lincoln by deploying Wi-Fi Access Points on buildings owned by members of BID. Apart 

from BID members paying for the power costs, this service has been delivered at no cost to 

the BID or Council.  

  

5. Local Authorities District Wide Wireless Rooftop Access 
 

What has recently emerged through a concessionary approach is the appetite of the market 

to use the concession/lease model to implement a separate rooftop opportunity as a 

springboard into business parks, with a view to investing in the deployment of wireless point 

Page 9

Agenda item number: 4

http://www.securitynewsdesk.com/gloucester-kicks-off-free-wi-fi-service-for-rugby-world-cup/
http://www.securitynewsdesk.com/gloucester-kicks-off-free-wi-fi-service-for-rugby-world-cup/


to point and point to multi point wireless connectivity into poorly served business parks 

providing cheaper and faster broadband for businesses. 

In this respect, apart from a wireless concession for street furniture, a separate rooftop 

engagement with the wireless and mobile market through non-exclusive leases with 

individual operators would from Chelmsford Borough Council’s perspective realise some 

immediate added value and support the Council’s wider business related agenda including 

the enablement and promotion of the Business Voucher Scheme. 

6. Council Owned Wireless, Ducting and Fibre Infrastructure – Concession 
 

Whilst still in its infancy a number of local authorities are exploring commercial opportunities 

based on commercialising council owned networks. In terms of network infrastructure this 

has embraced both carrier class wireless networks deployed to deliver operational services 

to ducting infrastructure built primarily to support the provision of public space cctv. 

What has been at the heart of this exercise for local authorities has been the opportunity to 

engage with the market and realise potential revenue by providing at a market rate and 

based on a wholesale model a facility to deliver alternative broadband services primarily for 

business.  

An example of this model has been the successful commercialisation through a 

concessionary model of ducting infrastructure owned by the London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham. In this instance a concession was secured with the private sector 

with a result that the ducting facility is now driving a wider digital agenda as well as 

generating revenue for the Council. 

7. Smart City/Town Extended Concession 
 

Whilst still in their infancy there is growing evidence that commercial models which adopt the 

fundamentals of a concessionary approach, but also seeks to embrace a council’s wider 

smart city vision and agenda, are starting to emerge in the market. 

This would entail the council identifying ways in which they would utilise the wireless network 

to deliver smart city applications and services, on the basis of realising cost savings, as well 

as the network playing an enabling role to deliver through wifi coverage social and economic 

benefit. 

As indicated, such an approach is still in its infancy however discussions surrounding this 

opportunity are starting to take place in the likes of Glasgow and Brighton.  

 

3.   EVOLVING MODELS 
 

Beyond these commercial models as outlined a number of legislative changes and innovative 

approaches to procurement are now emerging to offer new opportunities for local authorities in 

considering how they can develop an enabling role to drive a wireless digital agenda and improve 

connectivity and access.  

 

 

Page 10

Agenda item number: 4



1. The Social Value Opportunity – Application of the Social Value Act 2012 
 

Both public and private sectors are looking at how The Public Services (Social Value) Act 

2012, which became effective at the end of January 2013, could apply to wireless and wifi in 

urban areas. 

In respect to the provision of wifi a local authority could put a CCTV contract out to tender 

asking what private sector suppliers can offer in terms of social value. A higher priced bid 

may include the provision of free public wifi using CCTV columns. Under the Act the local 

authority could choose the higher cost bid because of the social value it brings. Another 

example of social value may be that a particular contract offer will create a number of local 

jobs to service the contract, rather than using existing employees or those based outside the 

local area. Again this provision of social value means the local authority can opt for this bid if 

it believes the social value it brings is worth a monetary higher cost. 

To date there has been no wireless-related procurement in which the Act has been applied, 

but councils are actively employed in considering this opportunity and understanding how it 

could be successfully realized. However in terms of leveraging social value councils are 

becoming increasingly aware of its potential through procurement opportunities and case studies 

will start to be published in the very near future.    

2. Smart City Agenda 
 

With the emergence of Smart City/Borough Visions there is growing interest in the telecom 

market in understanding how the Smart City Agenda and the potential need for upgrading 

existing or deploying new wireless orientated networks to support this agenda could become a 

key component in creating a sustainable commercial model to support the delivery of public wifi 

and other less commercial services. 

3. Planning and CCTV Policy Safer by Design: 
 

In this instance the Council are well placed to leverage the provision of ducting and other 

infrastructure (columns) to support the deployment of public space cctv in new 

developments. Infrastructure which can remain in the ownership of the Council but has been 

paid for the developer. By adopting such a strategy which has been already successfully 

implemented in the likes of the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham, this does 

provide a capability for the Council to extend the provision of public wifi and Small Cell as 

well as creating a ducting infrastructure which has the potential of driving a wider digital 

agenda. 

  

4. Planning Community Infrastructure Levy: 
 

Application of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to drive the Council’s digital agenda. 

In terms of its definition and how it forms part of Camden’ Council’s planning policy, the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge enabling local authorities to collect 
funds from new developments in their area. The charge applies when planning permissions 
are implemented and is based on a formula relating to the type and size of development. In 
this respect CIL applies to all proposals which add 100sqm of new floor space or an 
additional dwelling. Once the CIL has been collected, it can used to fund infrastructure such 

Page 11

Agenda item number: 4



as roads and other transport facilities, schools and other educational facilities, medical 
facilities, sporting/recreational facilities and open spaces. 

In this instance the opportunity does exist to explore and identify how CIL could support the 
delivery of further infrastructure including ducting and street furniture which could extend the 
capacity of the Council to enable through the provision of infrastructure better connectivity 
for residents and businesses within the Borough. 

 

4.  Enabling Role 

Through describing all these opportunities what remains at the heart of this approach is the 

Local Authority seeking to enable additional value whether through council owned 

infrastructure, policy, procurement or engagement as opposed to direct investment or funding 

and in doing so realise benefits for residents and businesses alike. 

 

 

-------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12

Agenda item number: 4



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford -  

 

 

 

 

 

A SUSTAINABLE PARKING STRATEGY 

FOR GUILDFORD  

2016  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 1 

 

 

A sustainable parking strategy for Guildford  

Contents  

1. Introduction 

2. Why have a parking strategy? 

3. What the strategy covers 

4. Context  

5. Future Developments and demand  

6. High Level Aims  

7. Current Attitudes to Parking 

8. Intercepting Traffic   

9. Park and Ride  

Current Provision 

The appeal of park and ride 

Impact on the road network 

Pricing  

Capacity  

Cost of Park and Ride  

10. Public Off-Street Parking 

  Current Provision 

  Purpose 

  Location 

  Encouraging Change  

  Quality Provision 

  Developing the Service  

  Pricing  

11. Balancing Demand with Supply 

  Introduction 

  Central Car Parks  

  Vehicles travelling from the North East 

  Vehicles Travelling from the North and North West  

  Vehicles Travelling from the South  

  Vehicles Travelling from the West  

12. Private Car Parks  

13. On –street public parking 

  Purpose  

  Current Provision 

  Changes to the provision 

  Disabled parking  

14. Residents Parking  

  Purpose  

  Location  

  Current Provision 

  Changes over time  

  Car Clubs 

  Creating more space 

15. Electric and Ultra Low Cars 

16. Outside the town centre  

17. Enforcement  

 

Page 14

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 2 

 

 

 

1. Introduction  

 

Guildford Borough is a picturesque part of Surrey.  Guildford is the county town and is the 

largest settlement in the borough.  It is close to the A3 and has good train links to London 

and the rest of the rail network.  The historic market town is a thriving and popular 

destination but suffers from traffic congestion particularly during the morning and evening 

peaks.  The Town Centre Masterplan sets out plans for the town and the area around to 

expand and to attract more businesses and housing.  The visitors’ strategy has the aim of 

increasing visitor spend by 50% by 2020. 

 

 

 

2. Why have a parking strategy? 

 

Research by the RAC Foundation suggests that the average car is parked at home for 80% 

of the time, parked elsewhere for about 16.5% of the time and only used 3.5% of the time.  

Whenever a car moves it has to go from one parking space to another, so providing and 

controlling parking spaces has a strong influence on traffic movements into the town and 

borough.    

 

There are number of strands to parking management but in essence it is a balance between 

three key factors: 

 

Regeneration – using parking measures to support town centre regeneration (e.g. providing 

more and/or cheaper parking to attract shoppers and businesses) 

Restraint – using parking controls as a means of restraining/managing traffic (e.g. to reduce 

congestion), improving environmental quality (e.g. air pollution) and/or to encourage the use 

of sustainable transport modes (e.g. cycling and buses). 

Revenue – securing sufficient revenue to cover costs of providing car parking and using any 

surplus revenue to fund other important services.  It must be noted that council’s provide car 

parks under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and it has been ruled that the powers 

should be used to manage traffic and not raise revenue. On-street parking and parking 

enforcement cannot be used to raise revenue either and the use of any surplus from these 

areas is controlled and can only be used to support highway projects.  In Guildford Borough, 

the surplus generated from on-street parking charges is used to fund the park and ride.   

 

The pursuit of one of these factors alone will potentially result in the other two being 

compromised. (Source: Institute of Highways and Transportation- Parking Strategies and 

Management) 

 

Our parking strategy needs to consider these factors and find the right balance for Guildford 

and present proposals for delivering the desired outcomes.  

 

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 3 

 

 

 

3. What the strategy covers 

   

The majority of parking and congestion occurs in Guildford and so most of the major issues 

occur in or around the town centre but the town centre cannot be considered in isolation.  

While the focus of the strategy is Guildford Town centre it considers parking issues around 

the borough.   

 

 

 

4. Context 

  

This parking strategy is designed to assist with the delivery and to compliment other key 

plans and strategies adopted by Guildford Borough Council and Surrey County Council 

 

Guildford Town and Approaches Movement Study    

Guildford Borough Council’s Visitor Strategy 2014 -20   

Strategic Parking Review (2014) 

The Local Plan GBC (out for consultation) 

The Town Centre Master Plan   

Local Transport Strategy SCC  

GBC Transport Strategy  

 

 

Surrey County Council’s Local Transport Plan (LTP3) contains a vision “to help people to 

meet their transport and travel needs effectively, reliably, safely and sustainably within 

Surrey, in order to promote economic vibrancy, protect and enhance the environment and 

improve the quality of life”. Surrey County Council’s Parking Strategy, which forms part of 

LTP3, describes the vision for parking as “provide parking where appropriate, control parking 

where necessary” and the objectives are stated as: 

 Reduce congestion caused by parked vehicles 

 Make the best use of parking space available 

 Enforce parking restrictions fairly and efficiently 

 Provide appropriate parking where needed 

 

 

 

5. Future Demand and Developments  

 

Parking policy is a tool to support other aims and objectives and needs to be flexible to 

respond to developments.  While we need to shape the policy around what we anticipate will 

happen in the future we need to be ready to review and amend it if the situation changes.     

 

Page 16

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 4 

 

There are currently around 5,100 public parking spaces provided by Guildford Borough 

Council.  There are also privately run car park below Debenhams (appx 60 spaces) and at 

Waitrose (170 spaces) Guildford Main Line (420 spaces) and London Road Stations (113 

spaces).  This makes a total of around 5,800 public car park spaces serving the town.    

The Parking Business Plans over the last few years have been promoting a “drive to not 

through” strategy.  This approach requires parking at interceptor car parks on the routes into 

the town and means parking will be further than it currently is from the centre.  Users will 

spend more time getting to and from the car parks on foot.    

 

The Town Centre Masterplan (the Masterplan) sets an exciting vision for the future of the 

town with less traffic and congestion in the centre and the development of a number of 

existing surface car parks into open spaces and some for development.  Greater 

pedestrianisation will remove a considerable amount of on-street parking in the centre.  

There are proposals for higher density housing and this can create a greater demand for on-

street parking for residents and their visitors.  The Masterplan has more ambitious 

development plans for business and retail than considered by Steer Davies Gleave.  

 

The Visitor’s Strategy has the ambition of increasing visitor spend by 50% by 2020.  This 

supports the idea of more visitors staying longer and spending more.  There are plans to 

expand considerably the retail offer.  An improved retail centre will increase the average 

dwell times for each user.  This means that car parking spaces will be occupied for longer 

and more spaces are required to meet the need. 

 

In order to assess future need for off- street parking in 2014 Steer Davies Gleave (SDG) 

produced a Strategic Parking Review, which looked at the current level of off-street parking 

in Guildford Town Centre and considered anticipated future development.   

The study concluded that the current level of parking provision could be sufficient during 

weekdays.  The study found that on Saturdays the provision of short stay parking in the town 

centre would be less than required but this demand could be met if short stay users where 

persuaded to use the long stay car parks further from the centre.     

In arriving at these conclusions, there were a number of assumptions  

 The level of on-street parking remained the same  

 The new developments were built with the maximum level of permitted parking 

 The occupancy levels would go above the 85% considered good practice  

 There would be no additional space for peak time demands at Christmas and other 

busy times   

 

A number of these assumptions have changed.   

 The level of on-street parking is likely to reduce with pedestrianisation  

 There is greater development envisaged now than when the study was conducted 

 The developments, particularly retail developments, are unlikely to be built with the 

maximum level of permitted parking 

 Occupancy levels in the car parks have increased since the study was done   

 We need some flexibility for peak time demands at Christmas and other busy times   

 

Page 17

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 5 

 

 

This strategy has been formulated on the basis that we will need around 5% more public 

parking. This will absorb the reduction in on-street parking and extra travelling time on foot to 

and from the car parks.  This will be subject to transport assessment and planning 

permission on a site-by-site basis.  

 

The remaining increase in demand will need to be absorbed by changes to more sustainable 

modes.  This needs to be monitored and if circumstances change, the figure needs to be 

adjusted.      

 

Unless there is sufficient convenient parking on each route into the town, drivers will drive 

through the town to reach parking space they prefer.  Car parks need to be developed to 

replace those lost and these spaces need to be locations to intercept traffic heading for the 

town centre.  We need to time the developments so that there is always an adequate supply 

of parking to support businesses in the town.  

 

Strategic Objectives 

To reduce parking in the very centre of the town and replace it by developing existing 

or building new car parks at “interceptor” locations and hence encouraging a drive to 

and not through approach which reduces congestion in the centre.      

 

To look to increase the amount of public car parking space available to allow for 

increased demand caused by a reduction in on-street parking and longer stay lengths.  

(subject to further transport assessment)     

 

 

 

6. High Level Aims 

  

The challenge of improving access to the town centre without increasing congestion 

highlights the need to encourage a change in mode of travel away from the car wherever 

possible and promote more sustainable modes of transport including cycling, walking and 

public transport.  The parking strategy can assist this aim but not deliver it.  It needs to work 

with other policies and strategies to develop the required approach.  

 

When encouraging use of alternative means of transport we need to bear in mind that 

competing centres surround Guildford and that visitors and businesses choose to come 

here.  The change of mode needs to be encouraged by making the more sustainable options 

more attractive to users rather than making access by car unattractive and potentially driving 

business and visitors to other destinations.   

 

We need to offer attractive choices for people coming to Guildford and ensure people are 

aware of all the options particularly non-car options.   

 

Any change in habits will come about gradually and we need to monitor progress and adapt 

our approach accordingly to ensure Guildford’s position is enhanced.  

 

 

Page 18

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 6 

 

As a high level approach we need to   

 

 encourage the use of more sustainable transport modes including park and 
ride 

 review the provision of car parks to encourage drivers to park and return 

directly along main routes in a “drive to, not through” approach   

 to look to maintain capacity for off-street parking but in interceptor car parks 

which take traffic off the roads before it reaches the centre and reduce 

congestion in the centre     

 provide a balanced mixture of parking options including park and ride, car 
parks and on street parking, needed to support a vibrant economy      

 annually review parking tariffs and usage centred on the town centre in order 
to maintain a hierarchy of charges.  Public on-street parking to have the 
highest tariff and for the cost of parking to reduce the further a driver parks 
from the centre    

 keep park and ride fares low  compared to parking charges, and to promote it 
as an alternative to parking in or near the town centre  

 develop more park and ride sites subject to appropriate business cases and 
encourage greater use of existing sites 

 monitor all available indicators to ensure that the local economy continues to 
be successful and to ensure that customers and businesses continue to 
choose to do business in Guildford   

 use on-street parking controls to support the objectives listed above, to 
maintain safe traffic flow and where necessary, and where supported by the 
local community, prioritise space for residents 

 

 

7. Current Attitudes to Driving and Parking  

In 2015, Social and Market Strategic Research (SMSR) conducted a consultation on 

people’s attitudes towards parking in Guildford.  The highlights of the findings are listed 

below:      

 72% cited LOCATION as most IMPORTANT factor when choosing a CAR PARK; 

 56% stated NOTHING would encourage them to come to Guildford town centre by means 

other than by CAR; 

 18% stated MORE frequent bus services would encourage them to NOT use their CAR; 

 43% stated NOTHING has PREVENTED them from using PARK AND RIDE services in the past; 

 ONLY 9% cite CONGESTION/LACK OF SPACES/LACK OF INFORMATION/HOURS OF 

OPERATION/UNRELIABILITY for NOT using PARK AND RIDE; 

 76% say NOTHING would encourage them to USE the PARK AND RIDE services or use it  

MORE frequently; 

Page 19

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 7 

 

 31% FAIRLY/VERY dissatisfied with LOCAL TRAFFIC CONGESTION when using CAR PARKS; 

 54% would PREFER to park CLOSE to the town centre and pay MORE; 

 25% would PREFER to park FURTHER AWAY from the town centre and pay LESS 

These findings show that it is going to be difficult to make quick and dramatic changes in 

people’s behaviour but they also show there is scope for encouraging more people to use 

other methods.  There are large numbers who say they would not use park and ride but 

focusing on those who would can make a difference.  Furthermore looking at the reasons 

why people do not want to change and addressing them will help.   

A survey carried out by Surrey County Council in 2010 showed that the average household 

income of someone using a car park in Guildford was likely to be 66% more than the 

household income of someone using park and ride.   Increasing the cost of town centre 

parking can make people think about where to park but also about whether to come to 

Guildford or go to a different location.  The difference in household income highlights the 

difficulty in using cost as the main factor in persuading people to change.  The main 

emphasis needs to be on making the choices we want people to make attractive and 

convenient.    

 

8. Intercepting Traffic  

The first opportunity to capture traffic heading to the town is at a park and ride site.  Drivers 

not tempted by this option then need to be encouraged to use an “interceptor” car park. Park 

and ride and car parks appeal to different users groups and so a combination of both are 

required to capture as much traffic as possible. Finally on-street parking is usually the 

closest and most convenient form of parking but because of this it needs to be the most 

heavily restricted otherwise a demand will be created which cannot be met and congestion 

will result.  The following sections of the strategy follow this route starting with park and ride 

and ending with on-street parking. 

  

9. Park and Ride  

Purpose:   

 To remove traffic from the flow before it reaches the town centre and thereby 
reducing congestion in the centre.   

 To target workers driving to work or others who travel during the peak times to 
reduce congestion when it is at its worse.   

 To encourage other users to park and ride to reduce traffic pressure and make the 
environment less car dominated  

 

 

 

 

Page 20

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 8 

 

Table 1- Current Park and Ride Provision   

Site  No. of 

Spaces 

Average  

spaces 

used  

Mon-Fri* 

Max 

spaces 

used 

Mon-Fri* 

 

Average  

spaces 

used  

Sat* 

 

Max 

spaces 

used  

Sat* 

No. of 

return 

trips 

per 

year 

Net Cost 

15-16  

Artington 725 435 (60%) 489(67%) 242(33%) 258 (36%) 186,000 151,000 

Spectrum 1000+ 

shared  

Mixed  Mixed Mixed Mixed 104,000 118,000 

Merrow  325 198 (61%) 263 (81%) 175 (54%) 220 (67%) 128,000 190,000 

Onslow  550 204 (37%) 284 (52%) 66 (12%) 93 (17%) 38,000 275,000 

      456,000 734,000 

*data from September 2015 

The data above shows that there were over 900,000 trips (over 450,000 returns) on the park 

and ride service and this makes a significant contribution to removing traffic, which could 

otherwise have entered the town centre.      

The Appeal of Park and Ride  

Park and ride is a convenient way of getting directly to the centre of town, it avoids the user 

having to navigate, drive in congested areas, and is relatively cheap.  The low cost offers 

advantages for those working in the town particularly in sectors with lower wages like service 

industries.  It also appeals to older visitors who do not want to drive in congestion and to 

tourists who will not know the area.   

 

There are no bus priority measures serving the Guildford Park and Ride services so the 

buses are likely to take the same time as the journey would in a car.  There is therefore a 

time penalty for users of the park and ride as they have to park and wait for a bus.  The 

reliability and frequency of service is key in minimising this disadvantage.  The Guildford 

Town Approaches Movement Study (GTAMS) proposes a sustainable movement corridor 

and this could improve the bus links to Onslow and Spectrum and any future site in the North 

East (Gosden Hill).    

Park and ride and car parking appeal to different users for different reasons and we need to 

maximise the benefit of both options to intercept as much traffic as possible. It is important to 

maintain a price differential between town centre parking and the park and ride but we also 

need to make park and ride more convenient for users and reduce the journey time.   

Impact on road network 

Park and ride takes traffic off the road network before it reaches the centre and reduces 

congestion in the centre.   It does not always reduce the number of journeys made by car as 

some may decide to drive to the park and ride rather making a journey entirely by public 

transport.   

 

Page 21

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 9 

 

There are two main groups of people who may wish to use park and ride (a) people going to 

work and (b) people visiting the town for shopping, leisure or other activities.  Attracting 

workers to use the park and ride takes the demand off the roads during the morning and 

evening peaks and has the most positive effect on reducing congestion.  However workers 

will tend to park for long periods, normally the full working day, and so each one is likely to 

occupy a parking space all day.  Visitors, on average, tend to stay shorter periods and so the 

space they use in the car park could accommodate several vehicles a day.   The times 

visitors travel tends to be outside the morning and evening peaks so there is less impact on 

peak congestion.   

It therefore follows that a park and ride site needs more spaces to accommodate workers 

than it would to accommodate the same number of trips by shoppers or visitors.  Providing 

park and ride for workers has the highest impact on congestion but the travel times are 

concentrated around the morning and evening peaks.  Shoppers and visitors will be more 

spread out over the day and will have less impact on congestion but provide a more even 

flow of passengers for the bus services and make a service throughout the day more cost 

effective.  

Strategic Aim 

When space at park and ride sites becomes limited to prioritise long stay parkers over 

shoppers as removing these from the traffic flow has greatest effect on congestion  

 

Pricing 

Another characteristic that affects use and charging policy is the fact that workers tend to 

travel alone whereas shoppers and visitors are more often in groups.  The park and ride bus 

charges for each adult passenger whereas the town centre car parks charge per car.  Each 

fare-paying adult can be accompanied by two children under 16 without additional charge.  

However, the fare structure means three friends going shopping and using the park and ride 

will have to pay three fares whereas they could pay for one car in a car park.    

 

It is hard to charge on the bus per car because the bus driver will not be able to know which 

car passengers travelled in.  A charge for parking at the park and ride sites would attract 

VAT, which would mean 20% more would have to be charged to make the same amount of 

income assuming there was no impact on usage.    

 

Some park and ride sites charge more for people travelling in the morning peak, as they are 

likely to be working and be parked for most of the day.   Against this the greatest benefit in 

terms of reducing congestion is to encourage workers to use the park and ride.  

 

Capacity  

Spectrum is a shared site with the leisure centre and measures have been introduced to 

promote shorter stay parking near the centre for its customers.  None of the other park and 

rides sites normally reach capacity.  Artington and Merrow get full on a few weekdays in the 

lead up to Christmas but the rest of the time there is spare capacity.  None of the three park 

and ride only sites gets full on a Saturday. 

   

Page 22

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 10 

 

This spare capacity allows us to encourage all users and helps avoid deciding whether the 

services should be targeted at a particular group.   In the longer term, the greatest benefit to 

reduce congestion in the town would come from targeting park and ride at workers as this 

would reduce peak time congestion.   

 

There are some who use the park and ride sites for reasons other than to catch the bus and 

some who park and walk. The location of Onslow makes it appealing for people visiting 

nearby institutions like the hospital and university.  Once the site is fully constructed, there 

will be a barrier system and users will need to validate a ticket on the bus to get out of the 

car park.  At other sites, surveys have shown that the level of non-park and ride users is low 

compared to those parking and riding and while control measures could be introduced, the 

cost of these is likely to outweigh any benefit. 

 

Cost of Park and Ride     

The cost of running bus services and maintaining the sites is higher than the income 

received.   Table 1 (at the start of section 9) shows all the sites need to be subsidised.  In 

November 2015, a nominal charge of £1 return was introduced for concessionary pass 

holders who qualify based on age and this means that some of the cost of the service is now 

being met by these users and will improve the overall position.  

 

The current cost of park and ride is met from the surplus produced from on-street parking 

which is created from the on-street pay and display charges.  The Town Centre Masterplan 

proposes more pedestrianisation and if this affects the amount of on-street parking a new 

funding or different funding source will need to be found to support the park and ride.  

The funding to build park and ride sites has often been met from grants on land acquired 

through the planning process.  Experience in Guildford and elsewhere in the country shows 

that park and ride sites cost money to run. It is vital that any assessment of the viability of a 

site includes a realistic assessment of the cost of running it and where the funds needed will 

be found.  While funds are limited there is a limit to the number of sites which can be 

provided and it is important that decisions are taken to ensure that the sites that are built 

provide maximum benefit and at a sustainable cost.          

The overall aim is to provide a ring of sites around the town to offer people a choice to leave 

their car at the site and continue by bus or some other form of transport.  The most 

promising area for developing the next park and ride would be to the North East of the town 

off the A3 to intercept traffic travelling south.  We also have aspirations for a Northern park 

and ride.  We also need more parking in the south to intercept traffic, see section 11.  All 

future development of park and ride needs to be assessed on affordability grounds as well 

as transportation benefits.   

Strategic Objective   

To develop a ring of park and ride sites and other sites serving the main routes into 

Guildford, and to  make decisions on which sites should be prioritised based on 

traffic benefits and financial sustainability of running the site.   

Each site needs to be considered on its merits on two assessment criteria   

Page 23

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 11 

 

(a) Traffic benefits -  the amount of congestion it will reduce  

(b) Financial costs – including an assessment of how running costs could be met 

Any new park and ride site needs to be 

 Large enough to provide sufficient passenger throughput to support the bus 
service (500 spaces or more). 

 Well designed, high quality, safe sites with toilets 

 Served by a punctual bus service which is high quality, and reliable 

 Travelling time is 15 minutes or less 

 Supported by bus priority around congested spots to make travelling by park 
and ride more attractive than the car 

 Close to the feeder road and have uncongested access 

 Clearly signage and supported by good marketing  
 

We need to encourage a modal shift to park and ride to encourage a greater proportion of 

users to take this option.  In this way congestion can be reduced and the services become 

closer to self-financing.  

 To encourage greater use we need to consider: 

 Making bus journeys faster and more reliable 

 Increasing facilities on the site, possibly coffee franchise, café or convenience 
shops 

 Improving the quality and facilities on the buses, Wi-Fi possibly  

 Assisting shoppers carrying goods; with secure lockers in town, collection 
points etc 

 Increasing the offer by having cycles available and the sites close to safe-
cycling routes into town 

 Encouraging users to take the river tow path at Artington, investigate a transfer 
by boat in the summer months   

 More consultation with users and non users views and  

 Reviewing the hours the services operates  

 Longer opening hours and connections with the station   

 Improving signage and increasing marketing and its effectiveness.   

 Ways to encourage businesses to support, promote and develop park and ride  

 The use of P&R to remove school traffic, to support businesses outside the 
town centre   

 

10. Public Off-Street Car Parks   

Current Provision 

A map of the council’s public town centre car parks is attached as Appendix 1.  There are 16 

public car parks available seven days a week with another seven available for part of the 

week mainly on Saturday and Sunday.   

 

The council’s public car parks provide 5,100 spaces.  There are also privately run car parks 

below Debenhams (appx 60 spaces), Waitrose (170 spaces) and at Guildford Main Line 

(420 spaces) and London Road Stations (113 spaces).  By controlling the majority of public 

Page 24

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 12 

 

off street parking in the town centre, we are in a strong position to influence parking 

behaviour.  

It is estimated that between 7.00am and 7.00pm around 24% of the traffic on the gyratory is 

from car park users.  If this can be reduced then the gyratory will flow better.   At the 

moment, many drivers go to the car park that is most convenient to their destination.  To 

encourage  a “drive to, not through” approach there needs to be sufficient supply of 

convenient car park space on the main routes into the town.  These car parks need to 

intercept the traffic before it reaches the most congested part of the town.   

In adopting a “drive to, not through approach”, we cannot hope to stop everyone from 

travelling through the town.  However, the data on the number of car park users using the 

gyratory shows that achieving a significant reduction will have a positive effect.    

To encourage the change to “drive to not through” it is vital the pedestrian links between the 

interceptor car parks and the town centre need to be improved.   

Purpose  

 To remove traffic from the flow before it reaches the town centre to reduce 
congestion 

 To provide sufficient parking so vehicles arriving in the town do not create 
congestion because drivers cannot find parking  

 To use the closest car parks to the town centre to provide for short stay 
visitors and shoppers  

 Encourage long stay parking by workers and others in car parks further from 
the centre or ideally park and ride.  

 

Location 

To achieve a “drive to, not though” approach we need to consider the location and access to 

car parks and:  

 Alter the access to car parks to provide a “drive to, not through” approach and 
reduce congestion (Millbrook and Bedford Road in particular).  

 Develop car parks at key points where they can provide access to the centre 
without motorists needing to drive through the town to reach them.   

 Provide sufficient parking on the key routes into the town centre to avoid 
congestion caused by drivers not being able to park or driving through or 
around to find parking 

 Maintain or increase the number of spaces available to reduce the need to 
drive through 

 Improve pedestrian links between key car parks and the town  

 Improve signage and use modern technology like apps to help people chose 
the most appropriate car park 

 

Encouraging Change  

A number of areas need to be looked at to encourage a “drive to, not through” approach 

 Revise signage to encourage use of first suitable car park, possibly on a zonal 
basis 

 Develop apps and use of digital technology to better inform motorists of the 
choices available and to direct them 

 Monitor usage to ensure that most workers travelling at peak times use outer 
car parks or park and ride to reduce congestion in the centre at peak times  

Page 25

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 13 

 

 Use tariffs and improved pedestrian access to the town to encourage drivers to 
use the outer car parks particularly on Saturdays  

 Reduce the amount of “contract” parking in the town centre and move towards 
season tickets in the larger car parks further from the centre making better use 
of space and reducing traffic into the centre 

 Encourage park and cycle from some outer car parks   
 

Quality Provision 

We need to provide good quality car parks which are  

 Supported by regular investment in maintaining the car parks from the car park 
maintenance reserve  

 Designed and maintained to achieve the Park Mark Safer Parking Award 

 Clearly signed for pedestrians and road users  

 Easy to use with terms and conditions of use clearly stated 

 Supported by easy payment options  

 Kept clean and safe   
  

Developing the Service  

We can also develop the service by  

 Working with the business community to run offers that attract more 
customers to the town at less busy times  

 Looking at new and existing technologies to enhance the user experience and 
make parking easier to find and a better experience.  

 Using new technology like “booking” spaces can be developed to make use of 
areas where parking is not currently practical   

 Looking at ways of making car parks integrate into their surrounds and the 
town less dominated by the car 
 

 Pricing  

In terms of setting tariffs for car parks we need to   

 Maintain a price differential with the highest charge in the centre and outer car 
parks at a lower charge 

 Ensure a price differential which encourages the use of park and ride over a 

car park  

 Monitor usage of the car parks with other modes of transport to ensure a 

change in car park usage is resulting in an increase in other modes rather than 

less people coming to Guildford   

 Compare charges with other competing towns and centres to ensure Guildford 

remains competitive and attractive as a destination  

 Maintain the efficiency of the operation and within the policy context maximise 
surplus income 

 

11. Balancing provision to intercept demand  

 

Introduction 

In 2015, a study commissioned by Highways England interviewed users in the larger car 

parks about a number of factors including where they started their journey. Using this data 

Page 26

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 14 

 

our transport planners have estimated the routes that drivers followed.  Tables 2 & 3 below 

shows the findings.  

 

 

Table 2 – Demand for Car Parks 

Main Route(s) into town 

centre 

 

Demand 

Percentage 

Users (within 

15km)  

Demand 

Percentage 

Users (within 

20km) 

A25/A3(N)/A246/A320 37% 34% 

A281/A248 17% 14% 

A3100 11% 7% 

A31/A3(S)/ Onslow 

(Guildford Park Road) 

22% 26% 

A322/A323 13% 14% 

   

Table 2 shows the demand from people coming from a 15km radius and a 20 km radius.  

The data also allows us to estimate the proportion of vehicles using the main car parks that 

travel round the gyratory to the major car parks. .  

 

 

Table 3 – Impact on the Gyratory   

Main Public Car Parks 

 

12 Hour (0700-1900 hrs) 

Arriving Flows 

Percentage Arriving Using 

the Gyratory 

A25/A3(N)/A246/A320 Corridor   

Leapale 771 35% 

York Road 863 26% 

G Live 363 51% 

Bright Hill 285 42% 

Castle 952 50% 

Page 27

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 15 

 

A281/A248 Corridor   

Millbrook 545 52% 

A31/A3(S)/Onslow Corridor   

Farnham Road 881 58% 

Guildford Park Road 292 52% 

A322/A323 Corridor   

Mary Road 356 51% 

Bedford Road (Multi-storey) 1617 50% 

Bedford Road (surface) 393 100% 

 

In the next section of the Strategy, we analyse the demand for parking from different routes 

into the town and those arriving in the centre.  The figures use existing demand and with the 

level of development planned over the next 20 years these demands will change and we 

need to be flexible and adapt to this.  

Central Car Parks 

The Masterplan and other developments plan to remove many of the surface car parks 

which currently provide space in the centre.   This will help encourage vehicles to park 

further out and before they reach the more congested centre.  This is consistent with “a drive 

to not through” policy.  The parking will be replaced slightly further out from the centre.   To 

compensate we must improve pedestrian access from the inceptor car parks into the town.   

 

The Masterplan also proposes greater pedestrianisation in the centre, which is likely to lead 

to a reduction in public on-street parking.  The demand for this parking will be pushed further 

out.  

Ultimately, Leapale Road Multi Storey, which is required to provide parking for the North 

Street Development, may become one of the only central car park available.  As the number 

of central car parks and parking spaces reduce the demand for the remaining spaces will 

increase. With modern technology, a booking system could be developed and drivers 

without a booking diverted or not permitted into the centre.  This would remove the potential 

for congestion caused by a lack of space in car parks like Leapale Road.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 16 

 

Table 4- Central Car Parks   - supply and demand  

Roads 

included 

Car Parks Spaces  Current 

demand % 

from 20km  

% of 

GBC car 

parking 

now 

Proposed 

changes 

% 

resulting 

All Leapale Rd. 

Commercial Rd 

Old Police Stat. 

North Street  

Bedford Rd 

Surface    

Total  

384 

52 

62 

47 

68 

 

613 

The 

demand 

can come 

from any 

direction 

12% Commercial 

Rd 

Old Police 

Station, 

North St 

and Bedford 

Surface due 

to be 

removed  

7% 

 

 

Vehicles Travelling from the North East and East  

There are a number of different routes drivers can take to access the town from this direction 

and so a variety of interceptor car parks are required.   The main changes proposed by the 

Masterplan are a development on Bright Hill and on the Upper High Street car park.   It is 

important that car parking is maintained on Bright Hill as it intercepts traffic heading further 

down Sydenham Road.   Sydenham Road often becomes congested with vehicles queuing 

for Castle car park so Bright Hill car park is vital to relieve the pressure on Castle car park.  

Bright Hill is also the nearest car park to Mount Alvernia Hospital and provides parking for 

outpatients and visitors.   

 

Future developments elsewhere and an increase in Guildford’s attraction as a regional 

centre are likely to result in considerably higher volume of traffic coming from this direction. 

A park and ride site off the A3 serving this route would help reduce demand in the centre.  

Merrow park and ride is well used and a park and ride closer to the A3 could absorb some of 

future increases in demand.    

There is already an under provision between the percentage demand from this direction and 

the supply.  It is recommended to increase the parking in York Road Multi Storey car park by 

around 300 spaces.  One option is to provide underground parking with open green space 

on top.  Bright Hill is also important and a development on this site could include addition 

public parking spaces of around 56 spaces to absorb current demand and reduce pressure 

on Castle Car Park.     

York Road is currently designated a long stay car park but is used by both shoppers/visitors 

and long stay users.  To be an interceptor car park and remove more traffic heading for the 

centre the pedestrian access to the town centre could be improved.  It has good links to 

Chertsey Street and to the Upper High Street during the day through Allen House grounds.  

In the evening when Allen House grounds are locked the access is up the access road and 

is poor. This needs to be improved and could be incorporated in any development of parking 

on the site.  

There is also an opportunity to develop better access from Chertsey Street to a new 

development on the North Street site by creating a footpath through The Bars.  

Page 29

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 17 

 

Table 5- Vehicles travelling from the North East and the East – supply and demand    

Roads 

included 

Car Parks No. of 

Spaces 

 

Demand 

% from 

20km  

% of 

GBC car 

parking 

now 

Proposed 

changes  

% 

resulting 

A25 

A3(N) 

A246 

A320 

York Rd 

G Live 

Bright Hill 

Castle  

Upper High St.  

Tunsgate   

St Josephs  

Total  

605 

220 

144 

350 

49 

64 

71 

1,503 

34% 29% Upper High 

St to be 

developed. 

Aim to 

increase 

parking on 

York Road 

and Bright 

Hill. 

Additional 

356 spaces 

34% 

 

Vehicles Travelling from the North   

With the development of North Street demand for access to this area is likely to increase and 

the parking provision needs to increase to prevent an under supply and congestion this 

causes.  A large retail offer is likely to draw shoppers from a larger area and access down 

the A3 in particular. The area around the courts is being considered for development and 

this provides an opportunity to increase parking around the Mary Road site. It is 

recommended to look at around 300 additional spaces on this site.   This redeveloped car 

park could link to Bedford Road Multi Storey and have a direct link through to the shopping 

centre.   

 

Bedford Road Multi Storey is currently two unconnected car parks.  The first has an entrance 

on Bedford Road and can only be accessed from the gyratory.  The second has an entrance 

on Laundry Road.  Both car parks have their exits on to Onslow Street which can get very 

congested.   The traffic flow around the gyratory can be reduced by reorganising the car park 

so vehicles can only enter from the Woodbridge Road direction. The car park can get very 

congested when Onslow Street is congested and better exiting arrangements need to be 

looked at as part of the development of the area.   

Table 6- Vehicles travelling from the North – supply and demand    

Roads 

included 

Car Parks Number of 

Spaces  

Demand 

% from 

20km  

% of 

GBC car 

parking 

now 

Proposed 

Changes 

% 

resulting 

A322 

A323 

Bedford Road 

Multi Storey  

Mary Road  

 

 

  

1033 

 

107 

 

1140 

14% 22% Increase 

parking on 

the Mary 

Road site 

by around 

300 

26% 

 

 

 

Page 30

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 18 

 

 Vehicles travelling from the South  

There is a considerable mismatch between the demand coming from the south and the 

existing supply of parking in the town.  The Masterplan highlights developing Portsmouth 

Road car park as a square and this will remove parking that is currently available to visitors 

on Saturdays, Sundays, Bank Holidays and on weekday evenings after 6pm.  . The 

Masterplan also suggests that the on-street parking in Millmead (44 spaces) should be 

removed and an open space developed. The potential development of the Millmead council 

offices is also contemplated.  This site currently provides parking at weekends.  In total, it is 

planned to remove the 44 permanent on-street spaces in Millmead and reduce the parking 

capacity by 277 spaces at weekends.   

 

There are also significant housing developments planned to the south of the borough and if 

this goes forward, there will be increased demand.  

The only significant car park serving traffic from this direction is Millbrook on the A281.  

There are no permanent car parks on the A3100.  Artington park and ride is on the A3100 

and already takes traffic out of this route.  There is spare capacity at Artington.   The 

demand from this direction shows that park and ride cannot replace all the need for parking 

closer to the town.  Currently the majority of this demand will travel around the gyratory 

because there is inadequate parking in the south. 

We need to look to put more parking on Millbrook in a sensitive development and at best, 80 

additional spaces could be accommodated subject to planning permission.  There are 

constraints on developing this site caused by the fact the majority of the car park being in the 

flood plain and the fact the site is in a conservation area.   Even with more space on 

Millbrook, there will be a considerable short fall in parking which will be exacerbated by 

proposed developments. We need to:  

 Look to provide public parking as part of a development of the current council offices 

at Millmead 

 Consider creating the ability for traffic to go eastwards towards Castle and Tunsgate 

car parks before it reaches the gyratory.  

 Look to procure a site on which to build a car park 

 Consider developing Stone Bridge depot as a park and cycle site or adapted park 

and ride    

 Reconsider plans to develop existing car parks on this route or  

 Accept that there is an imbalance in the south and a higher proportion of traffic will 

travel through the town to find a car park   

Millbrook car park currently suffers from an exit, which forces all cars leaving to turn left and 

go round the gyratory.  There are plans to introduce a right turn out of the car park, which will 

allow vehicles to leave without travelling on the gyratory.      

 

 

Page 31

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 19 

 

Table 7- Vehicles travelling from the South – supply and demand    

Roads 

included 

Car Parks Number of 

Spaces  

Demand 

% from 

20km  

% of car 

parking 

now 

Proposed 

changes  

% 

resulting 

A281/ 

A248 

A3100 

Millbrook 

Shalford Park 

Portsm’th Rd 

Millmead  Hse 

Lawn rd   

Total  

244 

66 

98 

28 

107 

535 

21% 10% Portsmouth 

Road and 

Millmead 

H’se to be 

developed 

but 80 

more 

spaces on 

Millbrook 

7% 

 

 

Vehicles travelling from the West  

There is currently a good balance between the supply and demand from the West but 

demand is likely to increase with development.  The route is also served by the latest park 

and ride site at Onslow.   

 

However, the access to the town on foot from the car parks is not good and both car parks 

tend to be used by long stay users, which means shorter stay visitors will drive across the 

bridge and use another town centre car park.  

 

The access from Guildford Park car park to the station and through that into the town is set 

to improve with the development of the existing site to include a multi storey and by a station 

development, which it is hoped will allow direct access from the new multi storey to the 

station.   Plans to develop the station has shown all its parking on the East side which 

means drivers arriving from the West will need to travel across the gyratory.     

  

There is also an opportunity to improve access from Farnham Road Multi Storey into the 

town by a footbridge across the tracks and emerging on to Friary Bridge. An alternative is to 

improve access on foot over the Farnham Road bridge.  

 

Table 8- Vehicles Travelling from the West – supply and demand    

Roads 

included 

Car Parks Number of 

Spaces  

Demand 

% from 

20km  

% of car 

parking 

now 

Proposed 

changes  

% 

resulting 

A3(s) 

A31 

Farnham Rd 

Guildford Pk  

917 

400 

1,317 

26% 27% 

(26%) 

Guildford 

Park being 

replaced 

24% 

 

A table showing the proposed changes to car parks is attached as appendix 2.  

 

 

Page 32

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 20 

 

12. Private Car Parks  

There are a number of privately run public car parks in the town centre including, 

Debenhams, Waitrose, and car parks at the main line and London Road stations.  We need 

to seek to influence the use of these so they are consistent with the overall strategy.  To 

encourage parking as far from the centre as possible and having pricing that is consistent 

with encouraging this.  It is also important that pricing is consistent with the rest of the town 

centre so demand is not distorted.   The planning permission for Waitrose requires them not 

to charge less for parking than Bedford Road multi storey car park, although they can offer to 

refund the parking charge to people shopping in the store.  

 

 

 

13. On-Street Parking Public Parking  

Purpose  

 To provide access to the town for short trips  

 To provide for visitors where the driver needs to be close to their destination 
 
 

Current Provision 

There are just under 500 pay and display parking spaces around Guildford town centre.  The 

most central spaces limit stays to 30 minutes, ones further from the centre have a two hour 

limit and some around Mount Alvernia Hospital allow three hours parking.    

 

Changes  

Some on-street parking is necessary to support short trips or where the driver is, for 

example, shopping for heavy or bulky goods.  There is also a need to serve those who 

cannot walk great distances.  There is a separate section on disabled parking.  

The Masterplan proposes greater pedestrianisation and this will push parking further away 

from the centre and create a less car-dominated centre.    This is likely to lead to more 

visitors trying to park in residential areas and measures are discussed to control this.     It is 

hard to provide flexibility for residents’ visitors without allowing non-resident visitors to park.  

The non-residents would do so to avoid car park tariffs and one way of discouraging this is 

to have on-street pay and display. This provides flexibility to residents’ visitors and is likely 

to ensure there is more space for residents and their visitors by discouraging non-resident 

parking.  

A demand for on-street parking which is not met can lead to vehicles circulating looking for 

space and causing congestion.  We are working with a company funded by Innovate UK to 

create a parking platform which will provide drivers live and predictive information on where 

to find parking.  Part of this system will include adding sensors to on-street parking spaces 

and this will be key in informing motorists at an early stage in their journey about availability. 

It will also be invaluable in implementing change.  

 

Page 33

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 21 

 

Strategic Objective 

To support greater pedestrianisation by reviewing on street pay and display for 

visitors and safe guarding residential areas.  

 

Parking for People with Disabilities 

One key group that needs convenient access and parking are disabled people and 

particularly blue badge holders.  The council provides disabled parking spaces in its on-

street, in its car parks and it supports a Shopmobility unit within its Bedford Road Multi 

Storey car park.  The elongated nature of Guildford’s shopping area, the topography and the 

proposal to move parking further from the centre makes on-street parking the best option for 

the disabled or mobility impaired.  

 
 
Strategic Objective  
 
To provide sufficient blue badge parking within pedestrian schemes if access to 
shops is more than 50m from the available parking.  

 
 
 
 
  

14. Residents Parking Schemes 

Purpose  

 To provide priority for residents and other key users in areas that would be subject to 

significant levels of non-resident parking if parking was uncontrolled 

Location  

In and around Guildford Town Centre there are an estimated 3,661 permit bays and 

2,234 are dual use and 1,427 are permit only.  The controlled area is split into 10 

catchment areas labelled A to J. A map showing the catchment areas is attached as 

Appendix 3.   

 

Current controls    

 Where permit schemes are introduced residents with off-street parking are required 

to use it so the limited amount of space on-street can be used by those without off -

street space 

 Permit issue is limited to a maximum of two permits per household with the number 

being dependent on the number of cars kept at the property and the amount of off- 

street parking space associated with a property.  

 In area D (see table below) which consists of the town centre there is a limit of 261 

permits that can be issued.  Residents go on a waiting list and receive a permit when 

there is space.  While waiting they can receive a permit for one car in an adjacent 

area.   

Page 34

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 22 

 

 Depending on the level of pressure on parking there will be a mixture of permit only 

space and dual use space.  Dual use space can be used by permit holders without 

time limit and non-permit holders for a limited period of time or unlimited parking 

spaces.  

 The aim of introducing a scheme is to provide sufficient parking for residents while 

minimise potential displacement to other areas. 

 With the exception of a small area around G Live the controls apply Monday to 

Saturday 8.30am to 6.00pm. There are no controls on Sunday. Around G Live the 

controls apply seven days a week from 8.30am to 9.00pm.    

 Residents parking schemes need to be cost neutral and so the cost of the permit will 

be linked to the cost of running the scheme. Currently the charge is £50 for the first 

permit and £80 for a second permit. 

 There is a discount for vehicles with smaller engines and for electric vehicles and 

others powered entirely by alternative fuels.    

 Residents are able to buy daily visitors permits subject to a limit per year.  

The table below shows the number of permits on issue in each catchment area compared to 

the total number of spaces in that catchment area.  

 

Table 9 - Residents permits -spaces and numbers  

Area Total number 

of parking 

spaces 

Number of 

permit only 

Number of 

shared use 

Number of 

permits (Jan 

16) 

Ratio  

permits to 

space for 

permit 

holders 

A 804 520 283 966 1.2 

B 385 250 133 390 1 

C 341 142 185 339 1 

D 702 117 212 261 0.8* 

E 322 178 143 263 0.8 

F 735 200 535 364 0.5 

G 119 0 119 44 0.4 

H 274 0 274 69 0.3 

I 695 20 350 (322**) 115 0.2 

J 476 4 417 (53**) 148 0.3 

Page 35

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 23 

 

*In area D there is a limit placed on the number of permits issued and 340 pay and display only 

parking bays  

** Unrestricted parking bays  

A residents parking scheme can operate successfully with more permits than spaces 

because at any one time people will be away in their cars.  Many residents are usually away 

in their cars during the day and usually return in the evening.  The current hours of control 

for most of scheme are 8.30am to 6.00pm Monday to Saturday and the greatest pressure on 

finding space occurs in the evening.  The aim of the scheme is to give residents priority to 

park over non-residents.  A scheme that operates in the evening or at night will have a 

greater effect on residents returning home and is only beneficial to residents if there are 

large numbers of non-residents trying to park in the area.        

 

Changes over time 

The Masterplan envisages higher density residential development in the centre and more 

space for pedestrians.  On-street parking space for residents is likely to reduce and we need 

to be able to respond to this.  There are a number of interventions we can make to ease this 

pressure.   

 

Car Clubs  

Car Clubs encourage less car ownership by providing cars that can be hired at convenient 

points within the local community. The car club in Guildford is set to expand from two cars to 

seven with three of these being Electric Vehicles.  To increase their visibility the cars will be 

placed in residential streets.  The success of this will enable further expansion. The more 

cars that can be supported the more convenient it is for residents using the service and in 

turn the more attractive it becomes to new members. 

 

Strategic Objective  

Support and promote the development of car clubs as an alternative to residents 

owning cars. 

 Creating More Space for Residents  

The proportion of space reserved for residents will need to increase to help address the 

pressure caused by development and the proportion provided for dual use reduced.  The 

remaining dual use spaces maybe attractive to town centre visitors as an alternative to paid 

for parking in car parks. To discourage unnecessary parking but still allow flexible use for 

residents’ visitors, trades people and for visitors to businesses and facilities based outside 

the town centre the remaining dual use should be converted to pay and display.  This takes 

away the incentive to avoid parking charges but still leaves the space accessible to those 

who may need to use it but do not hold permits. 

 

We also need to consider increase the hours parking controls apply to cover Sundays and 

longer into the evening. 

 

Page 36

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 24 

 

In car parks, the demand from visitors occurs during the day and generally, they are, less 

well used at night particularly those further from the centre.  We will look at offers to allow 

residents to use this space and where possible and demand justifies it to develop car parks 

for residents.       

 

Strategic Objectives 

To respond to greater pressure in residential areas by increasing the proportion of 

residents only parking places.  

To ensure spaces are available for residents at times outside our existing controls 

Monday to Saturday 8.30am to 6pm buy considering Sunday controls and controls 

into the evening   

Look to support residents by offering off peak space in car parks with off peak 

capacity   

   

Permit Free Developments  

Where there is already parking pressure in an area a substantial development can make the 

situation worse if more residents choose to have cars and there is not the space within the 

development.  Existing residents also oppose new developments on the basis that they are 

likely to increase the parking pressure.    

 

This can be avoided if the development is declared permit free at the planning stage. This 

requires the adoption of the measure as a planning policy and a change in the Traffic 

Regulation Order.  It is suggested that this is only applied to large developments where there 

will normally be an opportunity to provide some parking within the development.   

Restricting the use of the public highway in this way is a strong measure and is only likely to 

be justified in the parking catchment areas with greatest pressure.  Table 9 above shows 

that the areas where a large development will have greatest affect are A,B,C and D.  

Strategic Objective  

To address the potential for a significant increase in parking pressure in residential 

areas A,B,C and D caused by large developments by making new developments over 

5 units permit free.  

 

15. Electric and Ultra Low Cars 

In 2007 we introduced concessions for electric vehicles that allow three hours free parking in 

pay and display car parks after one hour had been purchased. There are also free parking 

bays in Bedford Road Multi Storey car park for small electric vehicles.   To benefit from these 

concessions drivers had to sign up to the councils “green” permit scheme.  This allows us to 

monitor the number of electric vehicles and increase facilities in response to an increasing 

demand.   

Page 37

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 25 

 

 

Table 10 – Increase in the number of electric cars in the Green Scheme   

Year 2007-11 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

No. joining 

scheme 

4 3 5 14 21  

Total in 

scheme  

4 7 13 27 48 60 

 

The use of electric vehicles is still low but growth is expected to continue. In January 2016 

the Guildford Borough Council’s Executive agreed a recommendation to implementation of 

charging points at two key interceptor car parks.  We need to continue to monitor the usage 

of electric vehicles and increase our facilities accordingly.  

Charging points in the town centre should provide a fast charge of 80% in 2 to 3 hours.  If we 

look to provide charging at key points on long distance roads these should provide a rapid 

charge of around 80% in 20 minutes.   

For the fast charging points, it is recommended that there is no cost for charging but with the 

normal payment for parking.  This will encourage the use of electric vehicles without 

encouraging unnecessary trips into the town centre to charge.     

The question of definition has arisen as there are now many different variants on electric 

vehicles.  Our policy has been to allow vehicles powered solely by electricity into the green 

scheme.  This excludes some vehicles with “range extenders” which are small petrol engines 

used to generate electricity to extend the range.   There are now vehicles classified by the 

government as “ultra-low” which produce 75g or less of CO2 per kilometre from the tailpipe 

and a minimum 10 miles zero-emission driving.  At the moment, all cars which can achieve 

this use electric power to turn the wheels to some degree, from 100% electric cars to a plug 

in hybrid and an extended range electric vehicle.  It is recommended we adopt the definition 

of “ ultra low vehicles” rather than using purely electric.   

The residents permit scheme also offers vehicles powered entirely by an alterative fuel 

source permits at a reduced charge and it is recommended we should update the definition 

to “ultra low “vehicles.  

Strategic Objective  

Encourage greater use of electric and “ultra low vehicles” by providing charging 

points in key interceptor car parks, parking concessions and discounted permits for 

residents  with cars which qualify.  

To establish “fast” charging points which provide 80% charge in 2 to 3 hours in town 

centre locations and large new developments.  

16. Outside Guildford Town Centre  

In areas outside Guildford town centre, particularly in villages, parking is often an issue 

around shops, stations and public facilities like hospitals. We also want to support access to 

recreational sites and other amenities.  

Page 38

Agenda item number: 5



Draft Parking Strategy for Guildford     

Page 26 

 

We will consider appropriate on-street parking controls to promote a turnover of space 

around shopping parades.  

In areas where parking by people visiting a facility becomes a problem for residents in their 

local area, we will consider parking restrictions to ensure the parking is safe.  Where there is 

support from the local community we will consider residents permit schemes.  

In areas where the Guildford Borough Council has car parks we can look to control these so 

they provide parking for the intended purpose.  Around some of our open spaces, there are 

car parks, which are used by people parking for work so where appropriate controls can be 

used to ensure people can get access to the open space.   

 

17. Enforcement  

Enforcement is an important part of delivering the strategy.  We need to ensure there is 

sufficient deterrent to encourage motorists to comply with the regulations which we set 

governing the use of car parks and on street parking.   Enforcement is most effective when 

people understand why it is being carried out and support the general principles. Our 

enforcement needs to be firm but fair and have a purpose rather than simply applying rules.  

Guildford has a very good record and we have consistently had one of the lowest rates of 

appeal against our Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) in the country.  We also have a good 

payment rate for our PCNs.  These two factor together help to show we are issuing good 

quality PCNs and when they are challenged we respond clearly and fairly.  

We need to maintain the firm and fair enforcement approach. A fundamental review of the 

service revealed that we need to expand the hours we cover to provide deterrent outside the 

working day and the hours our enforcement officers work are being reviewed.   

 

 

Page 39

Agenda item number: 5



This page is intentionally left blank



"This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission
of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery 

Office Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright
and may lead to prosecution  or Civil proceedings. Guildford Borough Council, %

Town Centre Public Car Parks (2015)

Not to scale

Licence No. 100019625, 2015"

Print Date: 09/03/2015

Copyright GBC 2015

Bright Hill  
121 spaces  

Castle  
350 spaces  

Robin Hood  
23 spaces  

Upper High Street  
49 spaces  

G-Live  
220 spaces  

St Josephs  
71 spaces  

York Road  
605 spaces  

Millmead House  
27 spaces  

Tunsgate  
64 spaces  

Millbrook  
244 spaces  

Lawn Road  
27 spaces  

Shalford Park  
66 spaces  

Portsmouth Road  
98 spaces  

Mary Road  
107 spaces  

Bedford Road  
1033 spaces   

Bedford Surface  
68 spaces  

Farnham Road  
917 spaces  

Walnut Tree Close  
17 spaces  

Commercial Road  
52 spaces  

Old Police Station  
62 spaces  

Leapale Road  
384 spaces  

North Street  
49 spaces   

Guildford Park  
400 spaces  
(& Garages)  

Guildford Town Centre All Car Parks - Key

Very Short Stay (30 minutes maximum stay)

Short Stay

Short / Medium Stay

Long Stay

Weekend Car Park (Contract Mon-Fri)

Page 41

Agenda item number: 5
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Changes to car parks as a result of the strategy   

Car Park  Current Spaces  Change in 
numbers 

Proposed  Comment 

Bedford Road  Multi 
Storey  

1033 Unchanged 1033 Alter entry to lower level to avoid going round 
gyratory.   

Millbrook  244 Increase by 80 
subject to PP 

324 Flood plain – look at decking  and alter entrance to 
avoid going round gyratory 

G Live (site AC) 220 Unchanged  220  

Mary Road (site R) 107  Increase by 
300 as part of 
a mixed 
development 
on combined 
site 

407   

Bright Hill  +Robin Hood 
(site Z) 

147  Increase 53 200 Key site for parking – one of the few opportunities to 
increase parking levels 

Bedford Road Surface 
(site U) 

68 Developed as 
part of 
Bedford 
Wharf 

0  

Castle Car Park  350 Unchanged  350 Improved access from the south  

Leapale Road  384 Unchanged  384  

Commercial Road 2 (site 
AJ) + Old Police Station  

114 (52+62) Developed as 
part of North 
Street site 

0   

Upper High Street  49 In fill 
development  

0  

Tunsgate 64 Reduced by 
development 

60   

Farnham Road  917 Unchanged 917 Greater use as an interceptor car park for short stay 
parking once pedestrian access to town enhanced.   

York Road  (site AD) 605 Increase by up 
to 300 

905 .  

Lawn Road and 
Millmead House (site Y) 

(107+27) 134 Developed 0 The loss of this and Portsmouth Road leaves no 
parking on the Portsmouth Road.  Encourage people 
to drive through to a car park.  

St Josephs Church  71 Remain 71  

Portsmouth Road  98 Open space 0  

Guildford Park  400 Increase by 
100 

500 Needs good link to the station as part of the station 
redevelopment 

Shalford Park  66 Unchanged 66  

Walnut Tree Close  17 Unchanged  17  

North Street  47 Pedestrianised 0   

 5,135  5,449  

     

London Road (site AE) 113  113   

Guildford Station (site 
M) 

420  420  

Waitrose  170  170  

Debenhams 60   60  

Non GBC Total  763  763  

Grand Total  5,895  6,212  

 

Page 43

Agenda item number: 5
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



"This map is reproduced from Ordnance
Survey material with the permission of

Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controller of Her Majesty's

Stationery Office Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or

Civil proceedings.

Guildford town centre controlled parking zone (from 26/08/2014)

Not To Scale

Guildford Borough Council
Licence No. 100019625, 2014"

Print Date 23/10/2014

Copyright GBC 2014

Key

Area A (5/98)

Area B (2/99 rev 6/09)

Area E (5/98 rev 6/09)

Area C (6/00 rev 6/09)

Area D (10/97)

Area H (6/00 rev 6/09)

Area F (2/99) rev 6/09)

Area G (2/99 rev 5/14)

Area I (6/00 rev 7/03, 4/06 & 6/09)

Area J (9/03 rev 8/14)

P
age 45

A
genda item

 num
ber: 5

A
ppendix 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Borough, Economy, and Infrastructure Executive Advisory Board Report  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Report of Director of Corporate Services 

Author: John Armstrong 

Tel: 01483 444102 

Email: john.armstrong@guildford.gov.uk 

Lead Councillor(s) responsible: Matt Furniss / Michael Illman 

Tel: 07891 022206 / 07742 731535 

Email: matt.furniss@guildford.gov.uk / michael.illman@guildford.gov.uk 

Date: 12 September 2016 

Councillor involvement in the  
preparation of the Budget 

Executive Summary 
 
In January 2014, the former Corporate Improvement Scrutiny Committee established the 
Finance Scrutiny Group (FSG) in response to councillor requests for greater involvement 
in the budget setting and monitoring processes and to implement a recommendation 
from the Council’s external auditor at that time.   
 
The FSG comprised six councillors and its terms of reference were agreed as follows: 
 
(1)    To receive and scrutinise full budget monitoring reports 
 
(2)    To review general fund and capital programme draft budgets and inform the 

evaluation of growth bids 
 
(3)    To review provision of financial information to the Scrutiny Committee, Executive 

and Council to ensure that it is relevant, user friendly and at the appropriate level 
of detail. 

 
Following the review of governance arrangements in 2015, the Council established the 
two executive advisory boards (EABs) and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and 
also amended the terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Standards 
Committee to include the consideration of quarterly budget monitoring reports. Since that 
time, the FSG has not met, and the need to establish a successor group was identified 
at the recent EAB/Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme meeting. 
 
The governance review findings specifically envisaged the EABs playing a vital role in 
budget preparation, with budget monitoring being performed by Corporate Governance 
and Standards Committee, as stated above.  
 
 

Page 47

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

To that end, it is proposed to establish a joint EAB Budget Working Group, comprising of 
councillors of both EABs, whose terms of reference should be:  
 
To consider and review for submission to the EABs, Executive and Council: 
 
(1)     the draft General Fund and Housing Revenue Account revenue budgets, and  
 
(2)     the draft General Fund and Housing Revenue Account capital programmes, 

including growth bids to inform the evaluation process.  
 
As it is a joint EAB working group, it is suggested that each EAB appoints three 
councillors to serve on the working group for the 2016-17 municipal year.  The chairman 
of the working group will be elected from the six working group members, and the Lead 
Councillor for Finance would attend meetings of the working group in an ex officio 
capacity, in exactly the same way the lead councillor with responsibility for finance 
previously attended meetings of the FSG. 
 
A similar report will be considered by the Society, Environment, and Council 
Development EAB at its meeting on 8 September 2016. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

(1) That a Joint EAB Budget Working Group be established, comprising of 
councillors of both EABs, with the following terms of reference: 
 
To consider and review for submission to the EABs, Executive and Council: 
 

(i) the draft General Fund and Housing Revenue Account revenue budgets, 
and  

 
(ii)   the draft General Fund and Housing Revenue Account capital 

programmes, including growth bids to inform the evaluation process.  
 

(2) That this EAB appoints three councillors to serve on the Budget Working Group 
for the 2016-17 municipal year. 

 
Reason for Recommendation:  
To ensure backbench councillor involvement in the budget setting process. 
 

 
1.  Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To seek agreement to establish a Joint EAB Budget Working Group to work with 

the Lead Councillor for Finance and officers in preparing the draft revenue 
budgets and capital programmes for consideration formally by the EABs, the 
Executive and Council. 

 
 
 
 

Page 48

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

2.  Strategic Priorities 
 

2.1 The budget is the financial expression of the Council’s strategic priorities set out 
in the recently revised Corporate Plan.  The preparation of the budget therefore 
underpins all of the strategic priorities. 

3.  Background 
 
3.1 In January 2014, the former Corporate Improvement Scrutiny Committee 

considered a report on the review of councillor involvement in budget setting and 
monitoring processes in response to councillor requests for greater involvement 
in these processes and to implement a recommendation from the Council’s 
external auditor at that time.   
 

3.2 The Committee agreed to establish the Finance Scrutiny Group (FSG), 
comprising six non-Executive councillors, plus the Lead Councillor with 
responsibility for finance in an ex officio capacity, with the following terms of 
reference: 
  
(1)    To receive and scrutinise full budget monitoring reports 
 
(2)    To review general fund and capital programme draft budgets and inform the 

evaluation of growth bids 
 
(3)    To review provision of financial information to the Scrutiny Committee, 

Executive and Council to ensure that it is relevant, user friendly and at the 
appropriate level of detail. 

 
3.3 The group met on five occasions in 2014-15 and scrutinised and made 

recommendations on the following reports: 
 

 Business Planning and Budget Assumptions for 2015-16 to 2018-19  

 Budget Monitoring reports 

 Capital monitoring reports 

 Outline Budget and detailed growth and capital budget bids prior to 
consideration by the former Joint Scrutiny Committee;  

 Revisions to Financial Procedure Rules prior to consideration by Council;  

 HRA Business Plan 

 North Street capital bid and general project update 
 

3.4 Following the review of governance arrangements in 2015, the Council 
established the two EABs and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and also 
amended the terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Standards 
Committee to include the consideration of quarterly budget monitoring reports. 
Since that time, the FSG has not met, and the need to establish a successor 
group to focus on budget preparation was identified at the recent EAB/Overview 
and Scrutiny Work Programme meeting on 10 August 2016. 

 

Page 49

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

3.5 The governance review findings specifically envisaged the EABs playing a vital 
role in budget preparation, with budget monitoring being performed by Corporate 
Governance and Standards Committee, as stated above.  
 

4. Proposed Joint EAB Budget Working Group 
 

4.1 It is proposed to establish a Joint EAB Budget Working Group, comprising of 
councillors of both EABs, whose terms of reference would be:  

 
To consider and review for submission to the EABs, Executive and Council: 

 
(1)  the draft General Fund and Housing Revenue Account revenue budgets, 

and  
 
(2)  the draft General Fund and Housing Revenue Account capital 

programmes, including growth bids to inform the evaluation process.  
 
4.2 As it is a joint EAB working group, it is suggested that each EAB appoints three 

councillors to serve on the working group for the 2016-17 municipal year.  The 
chairman of the working group will be elected from the six working group 
members, and the Lead Councillor for Finance would attend meetings of the 
working group in an ex officio capacity, in exactly the same way the lead 
councillor with responsibility for finance previously attended meetings of the FSG. 

 
4.3 The Head of Financial Services, in conjunction with the Lead Councillor for 

Finance, will set the agenda for each meeting of the new working group.  Other 
officers from Financial Services and other services will attend as required.   

 
5. Consultations 

 
5.1 This matter was discussed by the respective chairmen and vice-chairmen of the 

EABs and Overview and Scrutiny Committee at the Work Programme meeting 
held on 10 August 2016, who suggested the action proposed in this report. 

 
6. Financial Implications 
 
6.1 There are no financial implications associated with the proposals in this report. 
 
7.  Legal Implications 
 
7.1 There are no legal implications associated with the proposals in this report. 
 
8.  Human Resource Implications 
 
8.1 There are no HR implications associated with the proposals in this report. 
 
9.  Summary of Options 
 
9.1 In summary, the options are as follows: 
 

Page 50

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

(1) To establish a Joint EAB Budget Working Group as recommended, which will 
provide backbench councillor involvement in the preparation of the budget.  
This would replace the role previously carried out by the FSG following a 
recommendation from the Council’s external auditor. 
 

(2) If the proposed working group is not established, there will be no formal means by 
which backbench councillors can get involved in detail in budget preparation.  

 
10.  Conclusion 
 
10.1 Both EABs are asked to confirm their agreement to the proposals outlined in this 

report so that backbench councillors can assist the Lead Councillor for Finance 
and officers in their work on the preparation of the draft budget each year. 

 
11.  Background Papers 
 

None 
 

12.  Appendices 
 
  None 

 

Please ensure the following service areas have signed off your report. Please complete 
this box and do not delete 

 

Service Sign off date 

Finance / 151 Officer 19/8/16 

Legal / Governance  

HR 19/8/16 

Equalities  

Lead Councillor  

CMT  

Committee Services - 

 

 

 

Page 51

Agenda item number: 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

EAB WORK PROGRAMMES 
 

Corporate Plan items are intended to give the EABs an early opportunity to consider major policies or projects. 
 

BOROUGH, ECONOMY, AND INFRASTRUCTURE EAB 
12 SEPTEMBER 2016 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Guildford Town Centre 
Technology Solutions 

Maximise wifi technology solutions for 
Guildford town centre to support the 
visitor and retail economy  

Yes Cllr David Bilbé 
 

Local Economy 
Manager 

April 2017 

Guildford Parking 
Strategy and Electric 
Vehicle Charging Points 

(a) Develop a parking strategy to 
support the Guildford Borough 
Transport Strategy, Town Centre 
Regeneration and rural parking 
requirements, including the 
redesign of town centre car parks 
and park and ride to provide for 
higher visitor numbers. 

 
(b) Work with Surrey County Council 

to identify suitable locations and 
install additional electric vehicle 
charging points 

Yes Cllr Matt Furniss Parking Manager (a) 2016 
 

(b) 2017 

10 OCTOBER 2016 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Public Arts Strategy (a) Consider the review and update 
of the current Public Art Strategy 

(b) Develop key priorities for Public 
Art and explore the opportunities 
available for funding, particularly 
through the planning system 

 

No Cllr Nikki 
Nelson-Smith 

Leisure Services 
Manager 

October 2017 

P
age 53

A
genda item

 num
ber: 7



 

2 
 

Integrating Community 
Care Services 

(a) Embed our community care services 
into the wider elderly integrated care 
partnership  

(b) Help shape and improve future 
health and social care services by 
playing an active role with partners in 
the Guildford and Waverley Better 
Care Fund Board 

Yes  Cllr Tony Rooth Head of Health & 
Community Care 
Services 

(a) November 2016 

 

(b) May 2020  

 

14 NOVEMBER 2016 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Multi-use sports and 
entertainment facility 

Undertake a feasibility study for a new 
multi-use sports and entertainment facility 

Yes Cllr Richard 
Billington/ 
Cllr Iseult Roche 

Director of 
Development  
Director of Environment  

2017 

9 JANUARY 2017 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Slyfield Area 
Regeneration Project 

Start delivery of housing as part of the 
Slyfield Area Regeneration Plan 

Yes  Cllr Paul 
Spooner 

Manager Major Projects 2019 

General Fund and HRA 
Capital Programmes  

Consider the General Fund and HRA 
capital programmes 

No Cllr Michael 
Illman 

Head of Financial 
Services 

February 2017 

20 FEBRUARY 2017 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Sustainable Movement 
Corridor 

Pursue the funding and delivery of a 
sustainable movement corridor linking the 
main economic areas and development 
sites to the town centre. 

Yes Cllr Matt Furniss Director of 
Development 

2018 

3 APRIL 2017 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

      

P
age 54

A
genda item

 num
ber: 7



 

3 
 

SOCIETY, ENVIRONMENT, AND COUNCIL DEVELOPMENT EAB 
 

8 SEPTEMBER 2016 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme 
Annual Review 

Recommend any necessary changes to 
the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
prior to public consultation  

No  Cllr Tony Rooth  Director of Resources 2017 

Implementation of the 
New Website 

Implement new website to improve 
transactional capability and increase 
channel shift 

Yes Cllr Paul 
Spooner 

Web Programme 
Manager 

December 2016 

20 OCTOBER 2016 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Smart Cities – An 
Energy, Climate 
Change & Sustainability 
Perspective 
 

Consider the smart cities agenda – what 
this could mean for Guildford in the long 
term for our alternative service delivery 
models, and impact on customer service 
and the transformation agenda.  

No Cllr David 
Bilbé/Cllr Nikki 
Nelson Smith 

Energy Management 
and Sustainability 
Officer  

 

 

17 NOVEMBER 2016 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Outline General Fund 
Revenue Budget 2017-
18 

Consider the Outline General Fund 
Revenue Budget 2017-18 

No  Cllr Michael 
Illman 

Head of Financial 
Services 

February 2017 

New Leisure Strategy Develop and implement a new leisure 
strategy  

 

Yes Cllr Richard 
Billington 

Leisure Services 
Manager 

May 2017 

Procurement Progress report including information 
regarding a targeted approach to cost 
savings (as requested by the EAB on 25 
February 2016) 

No Cllr Matt Furniss Director of Corporate 
Services 

November 2016 

P
age 55

A
genda item

 num
ber: 7



 

4 
 

5 JANUARY 2017 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Sustainability Issues 
(including eco-living 
options and the impact 
of/adapting to climate 
change)  

Ensure that Council decisions include an 
impact assessment on whole life energy 
costs, environmental sustainability and 
resilience to climate change and that 
appropriate planning for adaption 
measures is undertaken 

Yes Cllr David Bilbé Energy Management 
and Sustainability 
Officer 

May 2017 

Housing Revenue 
Account Budget 2017-
18 

Consider the Housing Revenue Account 
Budget 2017-18 

No Cllr Tony Rooth  February 2017 

23 FEBRUARY 2017 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

      

      

6 APRIL 2017 
 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 56

A
genda item

 num
ber: 7



 

5 
 

Unscheduled items 
Borough EAB 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Devolution / Double 
Devolution 

 

 No Cllr Paul 
Spooner 

Policy and Partnerships 
Officer 

 

Business Improvement 
District  
 

Objectives for next five years of the BID No Cllr David Bilbé Local Economy 
Manager 

 

LEP’s wider 
picture/Ensuring a 
sustainable economy 
 

Co-ordinate the LEP relationship and 
maximise funding opportunities to support 
Guildford as a smart growth hub  

 

Yes Cllr Paul 
Spooner 

Local Economy 
Manager 

2020 

 
Society EAB 

Item Additional information Corporate Plan 
Priority? 

Relevant Lead 
Councillor(s) 

Lead officer Target 
completion  

Recycling 
Improvements/ 
Review of refuse and 
recycling service 
 

(a) Review core recycling services to 
ensure that they remain fit-for-
purpose 

(b) Carry out doorstep surveys in 2017 
and 2019 to identify residents’ views 
on current and future recycling 
services  

Yes Cllr Matt Furniss  Fleet and Waste 
Services Manager 

(a) December 
2018 

(b) December 
2019 

Traded services & 
income generation 
 

Develop business cases for new traded 
services to increase commercial income  

 

Yes Cllr Michael 
Illman 

Head of Financial 
Services 

2020 

 
Others (suitability for EABs?) 

 Implications of the UK leaving the European Union  

 Community Right to Bid 

P
age 57

A
genda item

 num
ber: 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



UPDATE/PROGRESS WITH MATTERS PREVIOUSLY CONSIDERED BY THE BOROUGH, ECONOMY, AND INFRASTRUCTURE EAB 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item Lead Officer Lead Councillor Action Agreed Progress to date 

11 Jan 2016 Annual Parking 
Business Plan 
and Parking 
Tariffs 

Kevin McKee 
(Parking 

Manager) 

Cllr Matt Furniss That the recommendations to the 
Executive (19/01/16) submitted in the 
report to the Board, be approved.  No 
further action required. 

At its meeting on 19 January 2016, the 
Executive approved the proposals in the 
Business Plan and the amended tariffs. 

General Fund 
Capital 
Programme  
(2016-17 to 
2020-21) 

Claire Morris 
(Head of 
Financial 
Services) 

Cllr Nigel Manning  
(now Cllr Michael 
Illman) 

With reference to Bid 19 PR304 – 
Fleet Renewals Programme, the Board 
raised concern at the level of 
expenditure on the renewal of the fleet 
and suggested further staging of 
expenditure be considered.  In 
response, officers suggested that the 
Executive be requested to place 
PR304 on the provisional list of items 
subject to a further report to the 
Executive and that the fleet renewals 
programme expenditure be approved 
for 2016/17 only.  The Lead Councillor 
for Housing and Social Welfare 
indicated that he would convey the 
Board’s advice on PR304 to the Lead 
Councillor for Infrastructure and 
Environment. 
 

The Executive recommended the 
Capital Programme (including the new 
bids) for approval by Council 
 
The Executive also agreed to add item 
19 (Fleet Renewals Programme), to the 
General Fund Capital Programme 
provisional list, and subject to a further 
report to the Executive, before being 
progressed. 
 

Service and 
Financial 
Planning – 
General Fund 
Budget 2016-17 

Claire Morris 
(Head of 
Financial 
Services) 

Cllr Nigel Manning  
(now Cllr Michael 
Illman) 

The following comments were 
submitted to the Executive: 
 

 The Business Rates Reform 
announced in the Autumn 
Statement would be fiscally 
neutral for central government, 
rather than for individual councils.  
Under the reform proposed to 
business rates the Council would 
retain less business rate than 

The Executive noted the detailed 
comments from the EAB on the draft 
budget and recommended adoption of 
the Budget and Council Tax for 2016-17 
to the Council 

P
age 59

A
genda item

 num
ber: 8



Date of 
Meeting 

Item Lead Officer Lead Councillor Action Agreed Progress to date 

currently.  Members advised the 
Executive to protest to 
Government about the unfairness 
of the reform; the Lead Councillor 
for Housing and Social Welfare 
indicated his sympathy for the 
suggestion and undertook to take 
this request to the Executive. 
 

 The New Homes Bonus would be 
withheld in 2017/18 if the Council 
had not submitted a Local Plan 
by the relevant deadline. 
 

 In reply to a question about the 
viability of addressing the deficit, 
the Board was reminded of the 
Council’s transformation 
programme and the need to 
transform the Council’s 
operations and services.   

 

Establishment of 
North Downs 
Housing Ltd – A 
Local Authority 
Wholly Owned 
Housing 
Company 

Phil 
O’Dwyer 

(Director of 
Community 
Services) 

Cllr Tony Rooth To submit the following comments to 
the Executive:  
  
(i)     the Board’s endorsement of the 

creation of a Wholly Owned Local 
Authority Housing Company; 

(ii)    the Board’s agreement with the 
four, draft company objectives, as 
detailed in the report; 

(iii)   the Board’s endorsement of the 
governance arrangements; and  

(iv)  the Board’s views on Directors of 
the Housing Company 

 

At its meeting on 23 February 2016, the 
Executive noted the EAB’s comments 
and approved: 

 
(1) the setting up of a wholly owned local 

authority housing company limited by 
shares, provisionally called ‘North 
Downs Housing Ltd’ and a parent 
company called ‘Guildford Holdings 
Ltd’. 

 
(2) the grant by the Council of a 25-year 

repayment loan of £1.8 million to the 
company at an initial interest rate of 

P
age 60

A
genda item

 num
ber: 8



Date of 
Meeting 

Item Lead Officer Lead Councillor Action Agreed Progress to date 

6.5% to be drawn down in stages as 
required. 

 
(3) the investment of £0.6 million in 

equity shares of the company 
financed from the pre-April 2013 
housing capital receipts reserve, to 
be drawn down alongside the loan. 

 
(4) a budget of £130,000 to be financed 

from the Council’s invest to save 
reserve, to fund the start-up and 
business plan modelling costs for the 
companies. 

 
(5) authorised the Head of Paid Service 

in consultation with the Monitoring 
Officer and the Leader of the Council,  

 
(a) to approve articles of 

association and such other 
documents as may be 
necessary to govern the 
companies and to manage the 
relationship between the Council 
and the Companies; and 
 

(b) the appointment of the first 
directors  

      

22 Feb 
2016 

Rural Economic 
Strategy 

Chris Burchell 
(Local 

Economy 
Manager) 

Cllr Richard 
Billington 

The Board concluded there was a 
need for clear definitions, priorities, 
and measurables.  In addition, there 
should be a mechanism to enable 
interested organisations to contribute 
to the development of the strategy and 
sources of funding should be explored. 

A full-time Rural Economy Manager, 
Chris Stanton has been appointed and 

will draft a Rural Economic Strategy 
which will be subject to approval by the 
Executive in the next 4-6 months.  In 
addition, a consultant has also been 
employed to undertake a mapping 

P
age 61

A
genda item

 num
ber: 8



Date of 
Meeting 

Item Lead Officer Lead Councillor Action Agreed Progress to date 

exercise of the rural economy in 
Guildford and Surrey.   

4 April 2016 The Future of 
Guildford 
Museum 

James 
Whiteman 
(Director of 

Environment) 

Cllr Geoff Davis 
(now Cllr Nikki 
Nelson-Smith) 

The Board fully supported the 
recommendations for Executive’s 
consideration on 19 April 2016 and 
subject to its approval, looked forward 
to the reinvention and development of 
Guildford Museum as part of 
Guildford’s ‘Heritage Quarter’. 

The Executive noted the EAB’s 
comments and agreed: 
  
(1) To commission a feasibility and 

costing report for the proposed new 
build extension to the current 
Museum buildings and approved 
the vision of developing an updated 
and exciting museum offering at 
that site. 

 
(2) To transfer £240,000 from the 

provisional capital programme 
(ED18(p) Museum and Castle 
Development scheme to the 
approved capital programme to 
carry out the work referred to in 
paragraph (1) above.    

 
(3) To authorise the Director of 

Environment, in consultation with 
the Lead Councillor for Economic 
Development, Heritage and 
Tourism: 

 
(i)    to establish a Development 

Group, consisting of internal 
representatives and external 
partners, to assist in the 
delivery of improvements to the 
Museum; and 
 

(ii) to develop a fundraising 
strategy and related fundraising 
committee with a view to 

P
age 62

A
genda item

 num
ber: 8



Date of 
Meeting 

Item Lead Officer Lead Councillor Action Agreed Progress to date 

identifying and securing 
external grants and funding for 
improvements to the Museum 

 
(4) To request the Museum Working 

Group to review and make 
recommendations on the future of 
the Victorian Schoolroom, including 
the possible sale of 39½ Castle 
Street, should the Schoolroom be 
discontinued. 

 
(5) To approve the Action Plan and 

request the Museum Working 
Group to continue its work to 
deliver the Action Plan. 

 

Town Centre 
Regeneration 
Plan 

Barry Fagg 
(Major 

Projects 
Portfolio 
Manager 
Interim) 

Cllr Paul Spooner The Board fully supported the 
proposals for the implementation and 
delivery of a Town Centre 
Regeneration Plan subject to 
Executive’s approval at their meeting 
on 31 May 2016. [this item was 
subsequently deferred].   

At its meeting on 27 September 2016, 
the Executive will be asked to approve 

the delivery of the Town Centre 
Regeneration Strategy.   

      

13 April 
2016 

Proposed 
Submission 
Local Plan: 
Strategy and 
Sites 

Stuart 
Harrison 
(Planning 

Policy 
Manager) 

Cllr Paul Spooner The Board agreed to submit the 
following comments to the Executive:  

 
(1) To consider the Board’s 

overwhelming concern about the 
lack of adequate infrastructure to 
support planned development 
particularly in its rural areas.  
Sufficient infrastructure should be 
delivered when needed to 
support the cumulative impact of 

At its special meeting on 11 May 2016, 
the Executive noted the EAB’s 
comments and recommended to full 
Council that the draft Local Plan: 
strategy and sites document be 
approved for public consultation, subject 
to: 

 the removal of  site allocation policy 
A43 Land around Burnt Common 
warehouse, London Road, Send, 
and  

P
age 63

A
genda item

 num
ber: 8



Date of 
Meeting 

Item Lead Officer Lead Councillor Action Agreed Progress to date 

development in the future, in 
particular for sites that are too 
small to provide their own 
infrastructure directly themselves, 
but which cumulatively would 
have an impact.    
 

(2) To give assurance and guarantee 
that infrastructure improvements 
would be delivered in time to 
support planned growth.   

 
(3) To consider reviewing the 

methodology employed in the 
Green Belt and Countryside 
Study, specifically in relation to 
deciding between, low, medium 
and high sensitivity areas.  This 
would ensure that it was 
defensible when examined by the 
Secretary of State. 
 

(4) To support the strongest worded 
affordable housing policy we can 
have within the remit of 
sustainable development. 
 

(5) To safeguard green spaces and 
green approaches in Guildford 
Town and its surrounding 
countryside so to enhance the 
quality of life for all.   
 

(6) To review whether a higher 
windfall assumption is justified. 

 
 

 replacement of site allocation policy 
A43 with a new site to the east of 
Burnt Common Lane, south of 
Portsmouth Road, and north of the 
A3 known as Garlick’s Arch, Send 
Marsh/Burnt Common and Ripley  

P
age 64

A
genda item

 num
ber: 8



Date of 
Meeting 

Item Lead Officer Lead Councillor Action Agreed Progress to date 

 
 

23 May 
2016 

Implications for 
Guildford of the 
‘Surrey 
Infrastructure 
Study’ 

Neil Taylor 
(Director of 

Development) 

Cllr Matt Furniss The Board acknowledged that the 
Surrey Infrastructure Study had 
provided a useful framework to look at 
the infrastructural challenges that 
faced Guildford whilst also 
acknowledging the number of caveats 
that existed.  The Board also 
recognised the significant work that 
had already been undertaken to bridge 
funding gaps and looked forward to the 
development and implementation of 
Guildford’s Infrastructure Plan overall.   
 

No update. 

Guildford Design 
Guide 

Meave 
Faulkner 

(Design and 
Conservation 
Team Leader) 

Cllr Paul Spooner The Board fully endorsed the following 
recommendation:  

 

 That a working group be 
established to oversee the 
emergence of the Guildford 
Design Guide, ensuring that it 
was comprised of enforceable 
policies that carried planning 
weight, rather than a guidance 
document per se.   

 

A working group has not yet been 
established owing to a lack of resources 
in the Design and Conservation Team.  
An update will be provided shortly.   

      

11 July 
2016 

Stoke Park 
Masterplan 

Paul Stacey 
(Parks and 
Landscape 
Manager) 

Cllr Richard 
Billington 

The Board fully endorsed the formation 
of a project board.  The Parks and 
Landscape Manager would be invited 
back to the Borough, Economy and 
Infrastructure meeting in a year’s time 
to look at setting up a project board 
and how to take this forward.   
 

The Board will invite back Paul Stacey 
(Parks and Landscape Manager) to a 
meeting in approx. one year for an 
update on the establishment of a project 
board. 

P
age 65

A
genda item

 num
ber: 8



Date of 
Meeting 

Item Lead Officer Lead Councillor Action Agreed Progress to date 

 
 

Guildford Town 
Centre 
Regeneration 
Strategy 

Barry Fagg 
(Major 

Projects 
Portfolio 
Manager 
Interim) 

Cllr Paul Spooner The Board fully supported the work 
plan and objectives for the 
regeneration of the town centre.  The 
Board noted that the regeneration plan 
was to be considered by the Executive 
at its meeting on 27 September 2016.  
The Board recognised the short time 
frame left for members to have further 
significant input into the plan.  
Nevertheless, the Board requested 
that they had sight of the report and 
any associated private papers at its 
next meeting on 12 September 2016.   
 
[post-meeting note: It was agreed at 
the Joint Overview and Scrutiny and 
EAB Work Programme meeting that 
owing to the short-turn around the 
above topic would not be considered 
at the next meeting of the Board on 12 
September 2016].   
 

The Executive would consider this item 
at their next meeting on 27 September 
2016. 

 

 

P
age 66

A
genda item

 num
ber: 8


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Guildford Town Centre Wi-Fi
	5 Guildford Parking Strategy and Electric Vehicles
	GuildfordTownCentrePublicCarParks2015
	Appx 2 Parking strategy car park table
	Appx 3 CPZ plan

	6 Councillor involvement in the preparation of the Budget
	7 EAB Work Programme
	8 Update/Progress with matters previously considered by the Borough, Economy and Infrastructure - Executive Advisory Board

